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Chairman’s Statement

BV e

Dear Shareholders,

I present to the Shareholders the annual results of the Group for the

financial year ended 31 March 2010 (“FY 20107).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The Group’s turnover for the current year comprised two elements namely
the hotel rental and other income of HK$1.9 million and the realized gain
on listed securities trading of HK$0.4 million. The hotel rental and other
income were contributed from the Group’s first operating hotel located in
Xiangfan, Hubei province, which commenced business in September 2009.
During the year, the Group has disposed of all the trading securities, and
realized a gain of HK$0.4 million.

As a result of disposals of the 112 Apartments and the Changshou
Properties, the Group’s operating expenses have decreased significantly
during the year. In addition, the management has introduced cost
control measures to further reduce the operating expenses of the Group.
Furthermore, the Group has replaced the convertible notes by shareholder’s
loan which carries a lower interest rate which would result in a reduction in

the Group’s finance costs.

For FY 2010, the Group recorded a net loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company of HK$154.3 million (financial year ended 31 March 2009:
HK$150.4 million).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year

ended 31 March 2010.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND CORPORATE
DEVELOPMENT

Consequent to the 2008/09 financial tsunami, the Group had during FY
2010 re-positioned its strategies to face the financial and economic climates
under which its businesses have to operate. In realising its hotel properties’
potential, the Group has also looked into alternative uses for its hotel

properties.

Budget Hotels in the PRC

As reflected in our interim report, the Group has further re-organised its
portfolio of hotel properties. As elaborated in our recent announcement, out
of the total of 29 hotel properties that the Group had committed to acquire,
due to unsuitability arising from location and size area, the commitment
on 6 hotel properties had been terminated and the Group is in the process
of negotiating the termination of another 4 hotel properties. For similar
reason, 2 acquired hotel properties, one in Jinchang, Gansu and another in

Daying, Sichuan, were disposed of in May 2009 and June 2010 respectively.

As an alternative to self-operating our hotel properties, the Group has
begun looking into different uses for its hotel properties which include
leasing out and redevelopment. The leasing route would target budget
hotel operators with similar approach as us. Leasing would make the leased
property self-sustained while allowing us to retain the potential capital
appreciation. Redevelopment route is considered because certain properties
allow for higher plot ratio, hence this would bring in higher returns from
redevelopment potentials. Our hotel properties portfolio, recorded at
historical cost convention, has enjoyed capital appreciation along with the
PRC economic growth. Depending on the then prevailing circumstances,

further disposals or termination of commitment may also be considered.

The Group will continue its efforts in seeking joint venture or partnership
with hotel management companies and property developers where their

expertise will be beneficial to our Group.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ER A (5)

Redemption of Convertible Notes

The Convertible Notes (the “Notes”) in the amount of US$15.0 million
(approximately HK$117.1 million) were issued on 9 September 2008.
In accordance with the agreement, the maturity date of the Notes was 9
September 2010, and the noteholder has an option to request for an early

redemption for the Notes starting from 9 March 2010.

The noteholder has had exercised its right under the agreement to require
the Company to early redeem the Notes at the redemption amount of
US$18,849,832 on 9 March 2010. The Company has fully redeemed the

Notes on 9 March 2010, and the Notes have since been cancelled.

PROSPECTS

The impact of the 2008/09 financial tsunami continues to unfold around
the globe with the notable exception of China. The economy of the PRC
has grown by 8.7% in 2009 and is projected to grow by 9.6% in 2010. Our
Group maintains a focus on investing in the PRC, in the hospitality and

tourism industry attached with property related investments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our utmost gratitude to
our valued clients, shareholders and business associates for their continued
support for and confidence in the Group. I also wish to express our sincere
appreciation to our management and employees for their positive efforts

over the past year.

Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 July 2010
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Year’s Events

A b

2009 3rd Quarter . The Company announced annual results for the year ended 31 March 2009.
“EEFNER=ZFE AAFAGBRERBIVEZA=Z4—HIREEZ RERS -
. The subscription rights attaching to the Warrants of the Company issued to shareholders on

8 August 2007 expired on 8 August 2009.
AR TR ZFFLHENAINH BT T B Z 8 e it f B R — 2R
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. Annual General Meeting was held on 26 August 2009.
BERFERGR FRZNENA N HELT-

2009 4th Quarter . The Company announced the issue of 2,590 Series A Preferred Shares of “U” Inns &

TERFNAEFNFE Hotels Holdings Limited (“UIHHL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a
subscription price of HK$145.0 million pursuant to the subscription agreement entered
with the subscriber on 28 October 2009. The net proceeds from the subscription would be
used for the expansion and investment in property related project in the PRC and funding
operating expenses of the U-Inn Group.
AN AR ZFRIVE T =\ H BT S B i k- AT AT
Z 4 Y 2 1A% Y B BRI A PR A R (TR A & A4 B 1) 2,590 B AR 51 8 5
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. The Company announced interim results for six months ended 30 September 2009.
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2010 1st Quarter . The Company announced that the First Tranche of the Convertible Notes with principal
R RER T amount of US$15.0 million was early redeemed on 9 March 2010. After the said

redemption, there would be no outstanding Convertible Notes held by the noteholders.
A T A5 — A S B 215,000,000 T AT BB R IR R~ FE=A LA R
SR 1T o 7 R O 1T 4% > SRR AT NS S PR AT 0 AR R T 4 SRR o
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Year’s Events (Continued)

s (81)

2010 2nd Quarter
=

The Company announced the resignation of Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO as
Executive Director, Group President and Group Chief Executive Officer and a member of
the RQN Committee had been accepted by the Board with effect from the latest 7 August
2010 or any earlier date to be mutually agreed.

Ay T O A HE T OB AR R S A AT A O W AT AR R R B T AT B A
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Datuk LIM Chee Wah would be appointed as Group President and Group Chief
Executive Officer and a member of the RQN Committee for replacement of Mr. Percy
ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO with effect from the latest 7 August 2010 or any earlier date to be
mutually agreed.
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Disposal of Daying Garden Hotel at a consideration of RMB22,000,000.
VAARE A B H22,000,0007C Hi B K 346 [ W ) -

The Company entered into termination agreements to terminate the acquisition of 4
hotel properties on 25 June 2010, since these hotel properties no longer suited the overall
development strategies of the Group.
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The Company also announced an update on the status of the other 25 hotel properties.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Turnover

The Group’s turnover for the year in the amount of HK$2.3 million (year
ended 31 March 2009: negative turnover of HK$10.1 million) mainly
represented hotel rental and other income of HK$1.9 million (year ended
31 March 2009: HK$Nil) and trading gain on securities of HK$0.4 million
(year ended 31 March 2009: loss of HK$12.3 million).

The hotel rental and other income was contributed by the Group’s first
operating hotel located in Xiangfan, Hubei province, which was opened in
September 2009. Therefore there was no such income in the last financial

year.

There was also rental income of HK$2.2 million in the last financial year,
contributed from the Group’s service apartment, 112 Apartments, which

was disposed of in June 2008.

Other gain

Other gain represented the change in fair value gain of the convertible notes.

The convertible notes were fully redeemed during the year.

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased compared to the previous financial year, mainly due to

cost control measures undertaken by the management.
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Directors’ Commentaries (Continued)

o= H i ()

Other operating expenses

The other operating expenses decreased significantly from HK$95.0 million
to HK$41.6 million, which was mainly resulted from the disposal of
Changshou Properties in the last financial year. Included in other operating
expenses during the year ended 31 March 2009 were HK$40.7 million of
legal, property management, agency and professional fees, and, property
tax related to Changshou Properties. In addition, corporate expenses such
as legal and professional fees also decreased during the year mainly because
fewer transactions had taken place in the current year as compared to the
previous financial year, when the issuance of convertible notes and disposal

of subsidiaries took place.

Other operating expenses which are of recurring nature comprise mainly
office rentals, depreciation, and other corporate expenses related to on-going
corporate development activities. Other recurring operating expenses have
remained largely the same in the current year as compared to the previous

year.

Finance costs

The finance costs have remained steady at HK$97.7 million. However, with
the early redemption of convertible notes by replacing with shareholder’s
loan, which carries a lower interest rate, in March 2010 and the expected
reduction in total borrowings by the cashflow from disposal of hotel
properties and refund of deposits from China Post Group on terminated
acquisition of hotel properties, finance costs are expected to decrease
significantly in the financial year ended 31 March 2011 as compared to the

current financial year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintained total bank and cash balances of HK$35.7 million
as of 31 March 2010. Cash deposits have been placed with major banks in
Hong Kong and the PRC in the form of United States dollar, Hong Kong

dollar and Renminbi deposits mainly.
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Directors’ Commentaries (Continued)

As of 31 March 2010, the Group had amount due to ultimate holding
company and other loans totalling HK$324.9 million due within one year,
and obligations under finance leases of HK$1.8 million maturing within 3

years.

The Group’s gearing ratio is measured on the basis of the Group’s total
interest-bearing debts net of cash reserves over the total equity (including
minority interest). As of 31 March 2010, the gearing ratio was 200.1%
(2009: 136.0%). The increase in the gearing ratio over the two financial
years was due to additional loans from ultimate holding company used to
carly redeem the convertible notes and settle payments to the China Post

Group for the acquisition of hotel properties.

Subsequent to the year end, the management has obtained agreements by the
lenders to extend the repayment of certain short-term borrowings totaling
HK$324.9 million. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement on 25
June 2010, the Group has also terminated or proposed to terminate the
acquisition of 10 hotel properties, and the deposits paid by the Group would
be refunded by the China Post Group. In addition, on 7 June 2010, the
Group has disposed of a hotel property located in Daying, Sichuan province
at a consideration of RMB22.0 million. Together with the continuous
financial support from the principal shareholder, the management
is confident that by executing its plans the Group is able to meet its

obligations.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had a total of 115 employees, including
Executive Directors. The number of employees increased from 92 at 31
March 2009 to 115 at 31 March 2010 was mainly due to the new recruits
of staff force for the Group’s first hotel in Xiangfan, Hubei province, which
was opened during the year. The Group’s remuneration policy and packages
for the Executive Directors and senior management are reviewed and
recommended by the RQN Committee and approved by the Board on an
annual basis while that for other employees’ are reviewed and approved by
the Chief Executive Officer. The Group remunerates its employees based on
industry practice and the performance of each individual. The Group also
offers discretionary bonuses, medical insurance, and defined contribution
retirement plans, and provides a share option scheme for its employees and

Executive Directors.
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Profiles of Directors

- S

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Datuk LIM Chee Wah, Chairman and member of the EC

Aged 55. Datuk Lim has been appointed as the Chairman and Executive
Director since 27 April 2004. Datuk Lim holds a Bachelor of Economics
degree of The London School of Economics, England. Datuk Lim has
substantial investment and management experience in a wide range of
industries including plantations, leisure and entertainment, construction,
property development and information technology. Prior to joining the
Group, Datuk Lim was the Deputy Managing Director of Genting Berhad
and the Joint Managing Director of Asiatic Development Berhad during
1985 to 1990, and an Alternate Non-executive Director of Asia Financial
Holdings Limited during 1997 to 2002. Datuk Lim was appointed as
Executive Director of Dataprep Holdings Berhad on 5 March 2002, he has
re-designated and continued to serve that company as a Non-independent
Non Executive Director since November 2007. Genting Berhad and Asiatic
Development Berhad are listed on the Main Board of the Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad, Dataprep Holdings Berhad on the Second Board of the
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, and Asia Financial Holdings Limited
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Datuk Lim is a director and
beneficial shareholder of VXLCPL and is also an ultimate beneficial owner
of Huge More Limited from 7 May 2010, both VXLCPL and Huge More

Limited are substantial shareholders of the Company under the SFO.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO, Group President and Group Chief
Executive Officer, Chairman of the EC V' and member of the RQNC ¥

Aged 47. Mr. A. Chao has been appointed as an Executive Director, the
Group President and the Group Chief Executive Officer since 1 March
2005. Mr. A. Chao has extensive experience in the property field both
in Hong Kong and Asia. He was engaged in property investment and
development in Hong Kong during the last 21 years. Mr. A. Chao started
his property business in 1988 and developed his company into an integrated
real estate group in Hong Kong and Asia with businesses encompassing
such diverse areas as property agency, property investment/development,
estate management and cleaning service, interior design and contracting
business. He also has years of experience in the corporate development,
business planning, advertising, direct marketing and publishing industries.
Mr. A. Chao has tendered his resignation as Executive Director, the Group
President and Group Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the EC and
member of the RQN Committee with effect from 7 August 2010 to the

latest, or any earlier date to be mutually agreed.

Mr. XIAO Huan Wei, Member of the EC V

Aged 52. Mr. Xiao is the President — China of the Group since July 2006
and has been appointed as an Executive Director on 25 July 2008. He has
also been appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer of U-Inn Group
since 31 March 2010. Mr. Xiao has over 23 years professional experience
in business investment, operation and management in the Mainland
China. He was engaged in the establishment and management of the first
joint venture company affiliated to Shanghai Post & Tele-communication
Management Bureau from 1986 to 1991. In 1992, he participated in the
formation of Ming Sheng Group and acted as the General Manager of its
Shanghai branch. He was the President of Ming Sheng Group from 1994 to
2000 and was responsible for various functions including investment, real
estate development, import and export, logistics, computer network and
communications. Prior to joining the Group, he found an educational and
financial service company in Australia which was in cooperation with the
Bank of Communication in China and Australia Westpac to provide overall

financial solutions to students from China.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)

=R ()

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J. P., Member of the AC @ and the RQNC @

Aged 66. Mr. Smith has been appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director since 27 April 2004. Mr. Smith holds an L.L.B. (Hons) degree
of Bristol University, England. He was admitted as a solicitor in England
in 1967 and in Hong Kong in 1970. He was elected a council member
of the Stock Exchange on two occasions. He was a member of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government’s Economic Advisory
Committee, and was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform for ten years. Mr. Smith was the Vice
Chairman, Pacific Region of Credit Suisse First Boston, a leading global
investment bank from 1997 until his retirement in December 2001. He
was also the Chief Executive of the Jardine Fleming Group from 1983 to
1994 and the Chairman of the Jardine Fleming Group from 1994 to 1996.
Mr. Smith has over 25 years of investment banking experience in Asia. Mr.
Smith is an Independent Non-executive Director of a number of listed
companies including Frasers Property (China) Limited, Kingway Brewery
Holdings Limited and Genting Hong Kong Limited (formerly known as
“Star Cruises Limited”) which are listed on the Stock Exchange; Noble
Group Limited and United International Securities Limited which are listed
on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited; Asia Credit Hedge Fund
Ltd., which is listed on The Irish Stock Exchange; Castle Asia Alternative
PCC Limited (formerly known as “KGR Absolute Return PCC Limited”)
which is listed on The London Stock Exchange; and Global Investment
House, KSC which is listed on Kuwait Stock Exchange, Bahrain Stock
Exchange, The Dubai Financial Market and The London Stock Exchange.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)

During the last three years, Mr. Smith was a director of China Sunergy Co.,
Ltd., which is listed on NASDAQ during the period from May 2007 to June
2008; and of The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited, which
is listed on the Stock Exchange until he resigned from the office with effect
from 23 October 2009. Mr. Smith is also as a director of Lei Shing Hong
Limited, which was delisted on the Stock Exchange on 17 March 2008
following completion of its privatization and The LIM Asia Multi-Strategy
Fund Inc. (formerly known as “The LIM Asia Arbitrage Fund Inc.”), CQS
Asia Feeder Fund Limited and CQS Convertible and Quantitative Strategies
Feeder Fund Limited which had been listed on The Irish Stock Exchange
but were voluntarily delisted in 2008, July 2009 and September 2009,

respectively.

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P., Chairman of the RQNC @ and member of
the AC @

Aged 70. Dr. Lee has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director since 6 October 2005. Dr. Lee holds an honorary degree of
Doctor of Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
an honorary degree of Doctor of Laws of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Dr. Lee was formerly a member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council from 1978 to 1997 and a senior member of the Hong Kong
Legislative Council from 1988 to 1991. He was also a member of the
Hong Kong Executive Council from 1985 to 1992. Dr. Lee is currently the
Chairman of Pacific Dimensions Consultants Limited and Jada Electronics
Limited. He has also taken an active role in public services. Dr. Lee is an
Independent Non-executive Director of AMS Public Transport Holdings
Limited, Giordano International Limited, ITE (Holdings) Limited,
Playmates Holdings Limited, Sam Woo Holdings Limited and Wang On
Group Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)

=R ()

Mr. David YU Hon To, Chairman of the AC ? and member of the
RQNC @

Aged 62. Mr. Yu has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director since 1 May 2007. He is the Vice Chairman of MCL Partners
Limited, a Hong Kong-based financial advisory and investment firm.
Mr. Yu is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He was formerly a partner of an international
accounting firm with extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is
currently an Independent Non-executive Director of Great China Holdings
Limited, Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Energy (Holdings)
Limited, Media Chinese International Limited, One Media Group Limited,
Playmates Holdings Limited, Synergis Holdings Limited and TeleEye
Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

During the last three years, Mr. Yu was an Independent Non-executive
Director of Cinda International Holdings Limited (formerly known as
“Hantec Investment Holdings Limited”) until 23 December 2008, Shun
Cheong Holdings Limited until 23 October 2007 and BALtrans Holdings
Limited (delisted on 9 April 2008) until 21 February 2008, all of which are

listed on the Stock Exchange.

Notes:

(1) EC- Executive Committee of the Board

(2) AC — Audit Committee of the Board

(3) RQNC - Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee of the Board
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2010.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to our Shareholders.

Our principles of corporate governance emphasize on a quality Board,
sound internal controls, independence, transparence of information and
accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the management are
committed to continuously improving corporate governance practices and an

ethical corporate culture as its intrinsic value.

The Group has principally complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2010, with minor deviations

as stated below.

In accordance with Article 133 of the Articles of Association, one-third of
the directors shall retire from office by rotation whereas the Code A.4.2
states that each director shall retire by rotation at least once every three
years. As the Board consists of six directors and each of them retires in every

three years, this effectively achieves the same objective as set out in the CG

Code.

Pursuant to Code A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. All the Non-executive
Directors, except Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P, are appointed for a specific
term. However, as one-third of all the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at each AGM pursuant to Article 133 of the Articles of Association,
the Board considers that sufficient measures have been made to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than

those stipulated in the CG Code.

Pursuant to Code E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the Board should
attend the AGM. Datuk Lim, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to
attend the 2009 AGM due to unexpected re-scheduling of other important
business engagements. The majority of the Board members (including the
Chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the RQN Committee) attended

the 2009 AGM to answer the questions from Shareholders.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
SR E A ()

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility
for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Directors take decisions objectively in the interests

of the Company.

Board Composition

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Board comprises six directors
including three Executive Directors, namely, Datuk LIM Chee Wah (the
Chairman), Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO and Mr. XIAO Huan Wei
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Alan Howard

SMITH, J.P, Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. and Mr. David YU Hon To.

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO has tendered his resignation as
Executive Director, Group President and Group Chief Executive Officer,
Chairman of the Executive Committee and member of RQN Committee
with effect from 7 August 2010 to the latest, or any earlier date to be

mutually agreed.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms of

its diversity of experience and expertise and independence.

Director’s Nomination and Appointment

The Company, since April 2006, has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” for setting out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is empowered to appoint a
director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders
(being two or more Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
entire issued share capital of the Company) are empowered to nominate
candidates for directorship and subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meeting. RQN Committee can also nominate candidates for directorship for
appointment by the Board. Any director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next AGM and be eligible for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Company has been providing comprehensive induction to newly
appointed directors to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company and that they are fully aware of
their responsibilities under statute and common laws, the Listing Rules,
applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the

business and governance policies of the Company.

The Company has purchased Directors’ & Officers’ Liability insurance for

all Directors.

Board Practices

The Board holds meeting regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss business development as well as
the overall strategy of the Company. All directors are given an opportunity
to include matters in the meeting agenda. Formal notice of at least 14 days
is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given for
all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
available for inspection by Directors. Directors have full and unrestricted
access to relevant information in a timely manner with appropriate
information in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make
an informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities. The
Board has adopted procedures to enable the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense,
to assist them to discharge their duties, as provided in the “Guideline on

Independent Professional Advice”.

The Board held six meetings during the year ended 31 March 2010 and its

attendance record is set out below:—
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
SR E A ()

Independence

The Company believes that independence brings unbiased judgment
and conscience in decision making. The Board currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, representing half of the full Board
members. One of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses
accounting expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
The Board received from each Independent Non-executive Director
a written confirmation of their independence and has satisfied their

independence as required by the Listing Rules.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term
except Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P, who does not have a fixed term of
appointment, but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
AGM. According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
who served longest on the Board, shall retire but shall be eligible for re-
election at the AGM. Pursuant to Code A.4.2 of the CG Code, every
Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years. The Board
will ensure each Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three

years in order to comply with the Code Provisions of the Listing Rules.

According to the Articles of Association, a Director appointed to fill a
causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-election by

shareholders at the first AGM after their appointment.

Relationship

There is no family relationship among the Directors, senior management or

substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

In order to ensure a balance of power and authority, the responsibilities
of the Chairman, Datuk LIM Chee Wah and the Group Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO, are segregated for the year
ended 31 March 2010 and have been clearly defined in the “Guideline on
Division of Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.

However, after the resignation of Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO as
Group Chief Executive Officer with effect from 7 August, 2010 to the latest,
or any earlier date to be mutually agreed and, as a transitional arrangement
to cater for a smooth handover, Datuk LIM Chee Wah would be appointed
Group Chief Executive Officer.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and
the Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the

management.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

Board Committees

There are Audit Committee, Executive Committee and RQN Committee
of the Group. Reports of committee meetings are presented to the Board

regularly.

Executive Committee

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Executive Committee comprises
all the Executive Directors. The Executive Committee was chaired by Mr.
Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO, the Group Chief Executive Officer, and the
two other members are Datuk LIM Chee Wah and Mr. XIAO Huan Wei.

The Executive Committee is delegated to responsible for the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated

functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors who possess appropriate business, legal, engineering and financial
experience and skills to undertake review of financial statements in
accordance with good practice of financial reporting. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. David YU Hon To and the other two members are Mr.
Alan Howard SMITH, J.P, and Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
SR E A ()

The Audit Committee’s main duties are as follows:

(1) to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the External Auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the External Auditor, and any questions of

resignation or dismissal of that Auditor;

(2) to develop and implement policy on the engagement of External

Auditor for provision of non-audit services;

(3) to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements with exercise of

professional judgment before submission to the Board;

(4) to review financial control, internal control and risk management

systems;

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31 March

2010 and its attendance record is set out below:

FEREHTZ BEBH S

(1) BRAMPEAZ Wb i 24T - FOHT & AT S ffdie
Iv) B o7 4 AL R - v S I A B Y
0t I % 10 Pk 5 B it THLATE Ao A B %
S e T e R A M Y

(2) R A0 R B B S A AR B Tl AT
M ABAT

(3) AT AZ T3 = i il DA 2 S M) I X A
e A v 52 B P - S A B4R - P R
B S 5 A%

(4) b B B e P B e K JRL o A L o)
JE 3

FRENORRE_ZF-RF=A=1+—H
IR AR B B AT T =K > R R kR S
LU

Eligibility No. of Attendance
Directors to Attend Attendance Rate (%)
#H JRE 1Y R K B HIYER/E i (%)
Mr. David YU Hon To i B S A 3 3 100
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. P N R 3 3 100
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P. 25 6 78 9 kT 3 3 100

The main works performed by the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2010 and up to the date of this Annual Report included
the review of External Auditor’s audit plan and interim, annual financial
statements and results announcements as well as audit reports. It has also
reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system and

approved the internal audit report.

RREZFZ-F=EA=ZT—HIMEERKE
AERAH > FEREZHOETZ EH TG
135 75 D8 S A% W B 2 % 7 SR R b )~ AR R
S 5 A B SR AN A B A B o R
B 2 5 T AR IS 45 T A% 9 R B e B
TR M R AT S e A e P A M o

20

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
R AT PR




Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Remuneration, Quality and Nomination (“RQN”) Committee

The RQN Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Committee
is chaired by Dr. Allen Lee Peng Fei, J.P. and the other three members are
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P, Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO and Mr.
David YU Hon To.

The RQN Committee has adopted clear terms of reference and its principal
duties are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and to draw up procedures for formulating an incentive-based

remuneration policy.

The RQN Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31 March

2010 under review and its attendance record is set out below:

Directors

g

Dr. Allen Lee Peng Fei, J.P B L o N -
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P P N

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO i i A S A

Mr. David YU Hon To i B e A

The main works performed by the RQN Committee during the year ended
31 March 2010 and up to the date of this Annual Report included the
recommendation and approval of the fees and remuneration of Executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors. It has also reviewed

and recommended the appointment and re-appointment of Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in

the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests of the Directors in Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company

Name of Directors Nature of Interests

HREALW HE 3 1B

Datuk LIM Chee Wah Interests in Shares — Corporate Interests
EERE B Z HE 25 — 2 F BE 25

Interests in Share Options — Personal Interests

T Vi o B 2 2 — M A 2

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO  Interests in Shares — Corporate Interests
7 e S A T Be Ay 2t 4 — 2 v B 25
Interests in Share Options — Personal Interests

T S P e 2 e 2 — A A M A

3 R AT BRI 2 HE AR

BB -REZA=ZTH M GERX
WG B=1 T A B A A
A A5 0 68 GC AT T A > A ) o AT B
A2y ) B U UG (3% G 2 B0
) SEXVER BT IR T B ) B JBe A - R B
B B Ad Rl > SRR RSP ) 2800 AR
2% ) e Yt 22 P A HE 25 BB AT IR ¢

A A v iy B R B T Ay v i
i

Ordinary Shares/ Approx. %

underlying Shares of Issued

Note of HK$0.01 each Shares
5 Ji% I {0,017 7T e %17
ZHEm JBe By ¥ BE 2

M ik B e By 43 B (%)
1 1,069,308,000 69.9%
2 4,400,000 -
1,073,708,000 -

3 300,000,000 19.6%
2 4,400,000 -

304,400,000 -
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Notes:

1.

The corporate interests of 1,069,308,000 Shares are held by VXLCPL, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Datuk Lim Chee Wah (“Datuk
Lim”). The interests in 1,069,308,000 Shares comprises 769,308,000 Shares
which are beneficially owned by VXLCPL and 300,000,000 Shares which are
deemed to be interested by VXLCPL as security interests. These 300,000,000
Shares are held by Huge More Limited (“Huge More”), a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO (“Mr. A. Chao”)
until 7 May 2010.

Details of the interests in Share Options are set out separately in the section
“Share Options Scheme” at Reports of Directors.

The corporate interests of 300,000,000 Shares are held by Huge More, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. A. Chao until 7 May 2010.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the shares or

underlying shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the Directors or their

Associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within

the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register

maintained under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

1SR E A (4)
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7 . 4%769,308,000/8 i 45 I VXLCPLEE %5 4t
F $2300,000,000 5 JBt 43 # #5745 HI VXLCPLRA
PR R 25 7 SUHE © 3%300,000,000/8 43 )5
B R AR e (A ]) 2 KB 2i
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MAEHEE-F-RELHEH I

2. SR AR R B TG A TR A 4 D B R
RE2S | — 8 53 47 WP

3. 300,000,000/8 B4y 1 23 WA 25 7% 375 38 ph oG
A 2 ¥ I T 75 HE A 1 Huge More FFH 860 .
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests or short positions of every person, other

than the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company, in the Shares and

underlying Shares of the Company, as recorded in the register maintained by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interests

bt 3 4 1R i 5 1R

VXL Capital Partners Corporation Interests in Shares — Beneficial Interests
Limited ey Z R 2 — AR HE AR

Interests in Shares — Security Interests

TP e 2 W 2 — DR 8 B 2

Huge More Limited Interests in Shares — Beneficial Interests

TP JBe Ay 2 HE 4 — B i W £

Notes:

1.

769,308,000 Shares are beneficially owned by VXLCPL, which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Datuk Lim, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive
Director. Datuk Lim is also a director of VXLCPL.

300,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Huge More and are deemed
to be interested by VXLCPL as security interests. Huge More is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. A. Chao (the Group Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director) until 7 May 2010. Mr. A. Chao is also a director of Huge
More until 7 May 2010.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the shares and

underlying shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, no other interests or short

positions in the Shares or underlying Shares were recorded in the register

maintained under section 336 of the SFO.

o BB A i 27 HE

BB -REZA=ZTH M GERX
MBI 8= = AMAE B AN [ 7 A
V% 28 T A > B AR 2 ) R AT BUAR A
BN T A 2 ) e A B A B Je A e R i
LBmmE

Ordinary Shares/ Approx. %

underlying Shares of Issued

Note of HK$0.01 each Shares

B JBe i {0,017 7T (L15Y: £

ZEER JBe By ¥ BE 2

ik T A H 2 (%)

1 769,308,000 50.3%

2 300,000,000 19.6%

1,069,308,000

2 300,000,000 19.6%

Hi ik

1. 769,308,000 B B4 75t # = € 32 5 e B4 T
H RSB A OB 25 HEAT 1A W] VXLCPLE
WA > KSR IR R VXLCPLIY & & -

2. 300,000,000/ J&t 43 7 i Huge MoreH 2 B
A > BB B VXLCPLPA AR 7% 4 25 J7 X o
e Huge More /7 H1#8 S5 24 (45 B A7 B e
HITER) 2ERESBAEAE T F4E
HALHIE- ﬁ?ﬁéﬁﬁ?ﬁHuge MorefJ#EHH
BEOR-FREHALHIE-

3. Rl EEZ A RERR 39 IR0 A B R A 2
WA

Br LR EN R FFEZA
=+t H oM GEF R & EAD) B
S = AR A A A O TR N T R I b i
JBe A5 s AH B Bt A7 F) B i SRR A o

24

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
R AT PR
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Group’s External Auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers. The External
Auditor provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the External Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and
to report its opinion solely to the Sharcholders, as a body, in accordance
with section 141 of the Companies Ordinance. The Audit Committee is
obliged to ensure continuing External Auditor’s objectivity and safeguard

independence.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, audit fee amounted to approximately
HK$587,000 and non-audit fee amounted to approximately HK$278,000.

DIRECTOR’S AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010,
which give a true and fair view of the financial performance of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2010. In preparing these consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and made judgments under circumstances and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the Group.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the External Auditor of the Company, has
presented its responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report as set out

on pages 37 to 38.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

In the Company, the Board has overall responsibility for internal controls
and reviewing its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure
that assets are adequately protected against unauthorized use or disposal
and that the interests of Shareholders are safeguarded. The systems in place
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organizational structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it for
decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to Code C2.1 of the CG Code, the Company reviewed the need
for an internal audit function since April 2006 and considered it was
appropriate to continue with the practice of outsourcing the internal audit
functions. Accordingly, the Company has engaged an external accounting
firm as Internal Auditors to provide internal audit services to the Group on

an annual basis.
The Internal Auditors have conducted evaluation and tests in connection
with the following management’s assertions for the year ended 31 March

2010:

(1) the system of internal control of the Group including financial

reporting, operational and compliance controls is effective;
(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.
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The Internal Auditors also formulate the annual internal audit plan and
procedures, conduct periodic independent reviews on the operations of each
division to identify any irregularities and risks, develop action plans and
make recommendations to address the identified risks, and report to the
Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit
process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material

issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of Code Provision C.2.1, the
directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the Group and
further improve the system with respect to financial control, operational
control, compliance control and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the
guidance of the Board. In addition, this review also considers the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes

and budget.

The Company will continue where necessary to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of Sharcholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to Shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange following

the general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Sharcholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as Chairman of the Audit Committee and RQN Committee, or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and where applicable,
the independent Board committee, are available to answer questions at the

shareholders’ meetings.
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The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and

timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through websites

of the Stock Exchange and of the Company (http://www.vxlcapital.com).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to and within the knowledge
of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the latest practicable date prior

to the issue of this Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 July 2010
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, securities
trading and provision of management services to subsidiaries. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 18

to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis by operating segments of the Group’s performance, assets and
liabilities for the year is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 39.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers for the year are guests of the Group’s hotel
properties and accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover

from hotel properties for the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the purchase attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier was approximately 37% of the Group’s total purchases and
the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers

accounted for approximately 57% of the Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors, their Associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or

suppliers noted above.

Report of the Directors
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DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the year (year ended 31
March 2009: HK$50,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and Note 30

to the consolidated financial statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2010,
calculated under section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to

HK$12,751,000 (2009: HK$112,703,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial periods is set out on page 137.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries repurchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Key terms of the Scheme are summarized below:

(@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options
to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the growth and development of the

Group;

The participants of the Scheme include any employee or officer
(whether full time or part time, and including any Executive Director
but excluding any Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Director) of any company within the Group or any Invested

Entity (as defined in the Scheme);

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme is
144,000,000 which represent 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of adoption of the Scheme and after subdivision
of share (representing approximately 9.4% of the issued share capital as

at the date of the Annual Report);

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the Scheme
unless approval from the Shareholders has been obtained. The
number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Group if such grant would result in the 30% limit being

exceeded;
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v)

Unless approved by Shareholders in general meeting, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted to
any Eligible Participant (as defined in the Scheme) under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period during which an option
is exercised by the grantee, shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares for the time being in issue. Any grant of options to a substantial
Shareholder or any of their respective Associates in aggregate more
than 0.1% of Shares in issue, and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price on the date of such grant, in excess of HK$5.0

million, must be approved by Shareholders in general meeting;

(vi) An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the

Scheme at any time during a period (which may not expire later
than 10 years from the date of grant) to be notified by the Board to
cach grantee. Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its sole
discretion, there is no requirement on the minimum period for which
any option granted or to be granted must be held or the performance

targets which must be achieved before the option can be exercised;

(vii) A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of consideration for

the grant of an option is required to be paid by each grantee upon
acceptance of the option. An option may be accepted by a grantee

within 28 days from the date of offer of grant of the option;

(viii) The subscription price payable upon exercising any particular option

granted under the Scheme is determined based on a formula: P = N x
Ep, where “P” is the subscription price; “N” is the number of shares to
be subscribed; and “Ep” is the exercise price of the highest of (a) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of offer; (b) the official closing
price of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; and (c) the average of the official closing
prices of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

offer and as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the Scheme; and

v)

(vi)

(vii)
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

(ix) The life of the Scheme is until the tenth anniversary of the adoption
date of the Scheme or the date on which the Scheme is terminated by

resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting, whichever is earlier.

As at 31 March 2010, details of share options granted to Directors and

employees under the Scheme and outstanding are:-

(ix)

=R ()

wt# A RO T EE SR A B H R R

1+ PR AR I > o TR RO B ROK & il
0 A b A PR S H L s DU R

Ty e o

RER-FEZA=ZT—H o MEE#HET
0 SR H IR S v AR AT BE A

No. of Share Options

Ji I E
Exercise Share Cancelled/ Share
Price per Options Granted Exercise lapsed Options
Date of Exercise Share as at during during during as at
Grantees Grant Period (HK$)  1/4/2009 the year the year the year  31/3/2010
I
# “ERRE
B —“FEAE AR =H
1t WMA—H AR AR i/ =+—H
BRA il B 17 0 3] (W7L)  ZIERHE i il R ZWEMehE
Directors : HE:
Datuk LIM Chee Wah SRR 23/8/2007  23/8/2007 10 0.77 4,400,000 = = - 4,400,000
22/08/2012
Mr, Percy ARCHAMBAUD- R 1t A e A 23182007 23/8/2007 to 0.77 4,400,000 = = — 4,400,000
CHAO 22/08/2012
Employees : M5
Aggregate total of employees R H A3t 23/8/2007 23/8/2007 to 0.77 21,000,000 = - (8,400,000) 12,600,000
22/08/2012
29,800,000 - - (8,400,000) 21,400,000
Notes: W i < 3
1. The share options to subscribe for Shares are exercisable as to: 1. 8 JBCRE 7T RS T 1 W [ A2 DA i e -
(i)  For Directors or employees who have been employed for not less than two () B Bt F BT O 52 08 A AR R 4F
years immediately before date of grant: Z W R E 0
(a)  up to 20% immediately after date of grant; @ RPESth HBIRER 2 E20%
(b)  up to 46.7% immediately after 12 months from date of grant; (b)  FPELth H BN A 1206 A R R %
RE46.7%
(¢)  up to 73.3% immediately after 24 months from date of grant; and (0 FPELth A BN A 2400 7 R %
7£73.3% 3 K
(d)  up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of grant. (d)  FRPELth A BN A 36fi R R %

(i)

For Directors or employees who have been employed for less than two

years immediately before date of grant:

(a) up to 33.3% immediately after 12 months from date of grant;
(b)  up to 66.7% immediately after 24 months from date of grant; and
(¢)  up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of grant.

#100% °

7t 3 Bt F O AT 2 R A R AR

E 3= T

() ZEpERMBAMRT 2EDRERES
##33.3% 3

(b) ZEpER HWRT 24 H BERES
#66.7% 3 K

(0 EpEwiHMRF 36 H BRES

#100% °
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

=T ()

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2010 and up to the date of

this Annual Report were:

Datuk LIM Chee Wah
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
(Mr. A. Chao has tendered his resignation with effect from 7 August 2010

to the latest, or any earlier date to be mutually agreed.)

Mr. XIAO Huan Wei

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J. .
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J. P.
Mr. David YU Hon To

In accordance with Article 133 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. and Mr. David YU Hon To, who have been
longest in office since last election will retire by rotation at the forthcoming

AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 10 to 14.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year are set out in Note 14(a)

to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2010, none of the Directors nor his/her Associates was
interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete, cither

directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 15 May 2006, VXL Management Services Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy
Agreement”) with Smart Forward Services Limited (“Smart Forward”), a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Datuk LIM Chee Wah, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, to
lease the premises at Flat B, 56th Floor, Tower 1 and Car Parking No.
1-224 on 1st Floor, The Harbourside, No. 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (“Premises”) for a term of two years commencing on 15 May
2006 at a monthly rent of HK$55,000. The Premises are used as housing
accommodation for staff or guests of the Company. The Tenancy Agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company and details

of which were announced on 15 May 2006.

On 13 May 2008, the lease has been renewed for further two years
commencing on 15 May 2008 at a monthly rent of HK$66,000. A rental
deposit of HK$132,000 has been placed with Smart Forward. For the
year ended 31 March 2010, total rental expenses paid and payable was
HK$792,000 (year ended 31 March 2009: HK$775,000).

The lease was terminated on 14 May 2010 and was not renewed.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as the connected transactions disclosed above and those transactions
disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly subsisted at end of the year or at any time during the year.

=R ()
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

=T ()

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Details of Directors’ and Chief Executive’s interests in securities are set out
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities” in

the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

Details of Substantial Shareholders’ interests in securities are set out in the
section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 15 to 28 in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
External Auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and,

being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 July 2010
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PRICEAMATERHOUSE QOPERS

Independent Auditor’s Report

Y8 S A% Sl A

BORBKEETMEBLA

To the shareholders of VXL Capital Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VXL Capital
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 39 to 133, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
33rd Floor Cheung Kong Center
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
ot B G Al A PR 4 )
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

T S A% Wl g (%)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2010 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 July 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Ak 2 T WAL B

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2010 2009
“B-BE CRBAR
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Fff T# Tw#oo
Turnover CEX 5 2,329 (10,105)
Other operating income i 288 A - 1,888
Other gain/(loss), net Hib & F (i) 35 6 5,252 47,731
Staff costs i B B AR 7 (28,893) (62,443)
Write off of goodwill upon disposal of H A B S IR
an investment property s < T - (18,314)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H 8 B 2 W) 2 B - 54,393
Other operating expenses o Ath 28 25 BH 7 (41,602) (94,987)
Operating loss s 8 (62,914) (81,837)
Finance income BB U A 9 6,334 181
Finance costs (L2 gWN 10 (97,665) (98,411)
Share of losses of associates JRE A1 T 2 A ) s 19 (33) (96)
Loss before taxation g 5t 1 M 42 (154,278) (180,163)
Taxation (charge)/credit B (W) KR 11 3) 29,087
Loss for the year N g 1H (154,281) (151,076)
Other comprehensive income: HAthy 2 g M
Release of exchange reserve B H S i 2 ]
on disposal of subsidiaries e 3% BEE B £ A5 = (50,283)
Currency translation differences A e B 5 A 1,228 15,857
Other comprehensive income for the year, AR g H At A2 WA -
net of tax B30 B A IE 1,228 (34,426)
Total comprehensive income for the year A Y 4 T N 48 AR (153,053) (185,502)
Loss for the year attributable to: DL HEAG 4 N G 48
— equity holders of the Company —RAFRERFEA A 12 (154,281) (150,407)
— minority interest — /b B RO A = (669)
(154,281) (151,076)
Total comprehensive income for the year DL MEAG 4E 2w A
attributable to: AU -
— equity holders of the Company —AKRAFHERFEE A (153,053) (184,833)
— minority interest — /0 BB R 2 = (669)
(153,053) (185,502)
HK cents HK cents
wwAl vl
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share %2\ W] 25 85 5 A\ WAl 42 )Y
for loss for the year attributable to equity s 45 =2 5 e % 4 Mt i AR e
holders of the Company 8 % A 13 (10.09) (9.83)

The notes on pages 47 to 133 form part of these consolidated financial SR47H B 133 H 2 Wl i A AR A B B R

statements. Z—HRk4r e
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

B ER R

Asar 31 March 2010 J# —F—FFE=H=1—H

2010 2009
—B-BE  EEAE
Note HK$’000 HK$000
Fff T# T#oo
Non-current assets I i B & s
Property, plant and equipment Yy 3k - BB I Rk A 15(a) 229,590 161,308
Land use rights - Hb {3 P RE 16 79,790 63,338
Construction in progress TR TR 17 4,302 11,416
Interests in associates W 7 2 W) R 2 19 96 129
Available-for-sale financial assets W] ik B B 20 2,111 2,111
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE Wik I ~ FE A Ak 8 e K4 22 130,399 157,368
446,288 395,670
Current assets i B B
Financial assets at fair value through AT EEBBRRIIRZ
profit or loss B 21 31,111 33,075
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE WALk T ~ T AR T B % 4 22 76,700 81,118
Restricted cash 2 R i B 4 - 4,043
Bank balances and cash SRAT 4 I Bl 4 23 35,659 7,835
143,470 126,071
Current liabilities i B £ R
Payables and accruals JRE A 3k JE % HE ST E H 24 95,056 97,417
Liability component of compound BeaWMBETHRZ
financial instrument =Kt Vo 25 10,150 -
Other borrowings o Ath A 3K 26 325,511 167,377
430,717 264,794
Net current liabilities i B £ A (287,247) (138,723)
Total assets less current liabilities HEE R U B A1 159,041 256,947
Non-current liabilities I i 3 £ £
Liability component of compound BEMBELRZ
financial instrument A EER 4 25 12,375 -
Convertible notes ] e i 5 B 27 - 80,398
Other borrowings o Ath A 3K 26 1,193 1,769
13,568 82,167
Net assets & A 145,473 174,780
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
meBEEAEE (E)

Asat 31 March 2010 R = —FFE=H=—-—H

2010 2009
SR FE ERBELE
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Fff T 0 TF# 0

EQUITY BE 4
Share capital Jie A 29 15,296 15,296
Reserves it Hi 30(a) 6,813 159,484
Total shareholders’ fund R 4 AR 22,109 174,780
Minority interest 2 B % RORE 2% 25 123,364 =
Total equity B i A8 AR 145,473 174,780

Approved by the Board on 21 July 2010 and signed on behalf of the Board NE—-BELA -+ —HEEREGES -

by:

Datuk LIM Chee Wah
B bk B3

Director

#HF

W FEFAREFTHEE:

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
P A G 2k

Director

#HF

The notes on pages 47 to 133 form part of these consolidated financial S47H BB 1330 Z M ak B A 5 A B R

statements.
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Balance Sheet
ErEAMEER

Asar 31 March 2010 J# —F—FFE=H=1—H

2010 2009
R -FEE EFhE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i Tl Tl
Non-current assets IE R By E
Property, plant and equipment W2 - B Bk A 15(b) 42 53
Interests in subsidiaries FEf )i 2 ) i 25 18 330,000 -
Available-for-sale financial assets W]t B B R R A 20 660 660
330,702 713
Current assets i B B
Financial assets at fair value through WAVHEBBERIIRZ
profit or loss A 21 - 1,964
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE WALk T ~ LA AR e % 4 22 2,913 2,953
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wi R i 2 ) ik I 18 133,590 366,617
Restricted cash % R i 3L 4 - 4,043
Bank balances and cash SRATAE B R Bl 4 23 325 922
136,828 376,499
Current liabilities i B £ fE
Payables and accruals JRE A 3k JE % ME IR H 24 2,474 3,380
Other borrowings I Al A K 26 278,631 58,413
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE Ak B )i A Rl ek T 18 53,319 =
334,424 61,793
Net current (liabilities)/assets WE (A EEFME (197,596) 314,706
Total assets less current liabilities HEE R U B A 1R 133,106 315,419
Non-current liabilities I i B A 1
Convertible notes G 3 &% 27 - 80,398
= 80,398
Net assets & A 133,106 235,021
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Balance Sheet (Continued)
HrafEE (H)

Asat 31 March 2010 R = —FFE=H=—-—H

2010 2009
“ERE ZRFLE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i Tt T

EQUITY HE %
Share capital JBe A% 29 15,296 15,296
Reserves i 30(b) 117,810 219,725
Total equity HE i A4 AR 133,106 235,021

Approved by the Board on 21 July 2010 and signed on behalf of the Board W —RELH T HEHEEGES -

by: WHL FEFREREEGES
Datuk LIM Chee Wah Mzt. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
£ bh B e T e S A=
Director Director
HF HF

The notes on pages 47 to 133 form part of these consolidated financial S47H R 133 Z W ak i A 5 6 B ik

statements. Z#%Bﬁ' ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ = F —FF=H=—1—H ILF /&

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

A v B 26 A TR
Available-
for-sale Employee
financial ~ share-based
Share Share assets  compensation Exchange Retained Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
WiEhE DR
MEgE  ZEAMHE S
A T Bt ot fi B 3t TR B A A Jhe S i 48 A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS§'000
T T T T T T T T T
At 1 April 2008 REZZNENA—H 15,296 152,049 404 3,805 51,634 133,388 356,576 - 356,576
Net loss for the year Ean] gibs - = - = = (150,407) (150,407) (669) (151,076)
Other comprehensive income: K2 THHA
Release of exchange reserve on TR 5 A
disposal of subsidiaries i ft - = = - (50,283) = (50,283) = (50,283)
Translation exchange difference A ST A = - = = 15,857 = 15,857 = 15,857
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 W 2 TR A S - - - - (34,420) (150,407) (184,833) (669) (185,502)
Employee share option benefits {2 B I R A ) - - - 3,037 - - 3,037 - 3,037
Transfer to retained carnings TR I HE S 3 v it 2
upon lapse of share options TR f A - - - (146) - 146 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries R B 24 = = = = = = - V) %)
Contribution from minority shareholders 4S5 & - - - - - - = 756 756
Disposal of subsidiaries 1 B ) - - - = - o S (78) (78)
- - - 2,891 - 146 3,037 669 3,706
At 31 March 2009 RZZFFNE
EES 15,296 152,049 404 6,696 17,208 (16,873) 174,780 - 174,780
Net loss for the year L] b2 - - - - = (154,281) (154,281) - (154,281)
Other comprehensive income: 2 THRA
Translation exchange difference Y - - - - 1,228 - 1,228 = 1,228
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 W2 KA BH - - - = 1,228 (154,281) (153,053) = (153,053)
Employee share option benefits 1 5 e A A - o - 382 - - 382 - 382
Transfer to retained earnings TR B K A e
upon lapse of share options 3kl - - - (1,297) - 1,297 - - -
Issuance of preferred shares M o A B T R e
by a subsidiary (Note 25) (Wit2s) - - - - - - - 123,364 123,364
- - - (915) - 1,297 382 123,364 123,746
At 31 March 2010 REZ-%E
ZH=r=f 15,296 152,049 404 5,781 18,436 (169,857) 22,109 123,364 145,473

The notes on pages 47 to 133 form

statements.

part of these consolidated financial

SR47H 21338 Z Mk A &% A M Hek
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBHESHER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2010 2009
R FE ZEFALE
Note HKS$’000 HK$'000
i T#T Tt
Operating activities REBWEH
Loss before taxation ¥ ot A Jes 42 (154,278) (180,163)
Adjustments for: R
Share of losses of associates P& Al Yk 7 2 ) s 4R, 19 33 96
Change in fair value of investment properties & & #) 3¢ Z 2 P {H 55 H) = 379
Change in fair value of WMAEMETRZ
derivative financial instruments AR X ] 27 = (27,293)
Change in fair value of the embedded A 4 B S48 P iR AT A
derivatives component of THE 5 2 A FAE
convertible notes 528 /) 27 (5,252) (22,436)
Interest income on receivable JAE Wi — 1 TG S 2 )
from a former subsidiary I 2 ) BB 9 (6,303) -
Finance costs il R AR 10 97,665 98,411
Dividend income from listed investments bR SRR E 2 B A - (1,638)
Provision for impairment of receivables, JRE Wk T > FEA AR K%
prepayments and deposits i 4 2 U AE S 8 5,427 =
Bad debt provision SRR e - 3,208
Depreciation and amortization 7 % 8 8 5,739 8,025
Provision for impairment of property, W2 ~ HEAR T Rk A 2 YA
plant and equipment o g0 8 50 8
Gain on disposal of property, Ji L 3~ WA KB 2
plant and equipment % F 8 (467) (433)
Write off of goodwill upon disposal of H 85 4 1 3 R B
an investment property 5 = 18,314
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H 5 B R o W] 2 ) - (54,393)
Employee share option benefits 1@ B 1 Bt HE 4 1) 7 382 3,037
Changes in working capital o A )
— Increase in receivables, — REWCERIE - TEAT RIE
prepayments and deposits B i 4 54 m (2,238) (11,525)
— (Decrease)/increase — WA 2Kk 08 K g 5T A B
in payables and accruals (W), (7,585) 152,054
— Decrease in financial assets — RN TFEZE B 1 7551
at fair value through profit or loss MR 2 B 5 ¥ i A 1,964 16,504
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operations MEEBHE GRE)
AR R (64,863) 2,155
Overseas profits tax paid LA i AN A 45 B (3) (1)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow HamHHE (RE)
from operating activities A R (64,866) 2,154
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

maBlaiaR ()

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_F—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

2010 2009
R -FE EFhE
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
ff Tt T

Investing activities BEWH)
Purchase of property, plant and Wi A 3E ~ ME 23S I sl M

equipment and land use rights - Hb i F W (4,787) (62,109)
Purchase of investment properties L YN ST S - (48,718)
Payment of deposits for acquisition of A WL B 3 s 4 3 2

hotel properties 4 (131,945) (83,798)
Additions of construction in progress R R 17 (10,014) (11,413)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets Jis A\ AT 6 H A B S A - (426)
Proceeds from disposal of property, i ) 3~ B S

plant and equipment B #e- 3K 9,610 1,257
Proceeds from disposal of HEREWHREZ

an investment property J 453K JE = 31,800
Acquisition of subsidiaries WSe S B g 2 ) - (2,274)
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash B R 2 W) (0 BR B

disposed) Bl4) - 355,891
Receipt from a former subsidiary Wi B 8§ A ) sk 95,394 -
Dividends received from listed investments o ETEHREEZRE - 1,638
Net cash (outflow)/inflow B"EMB 2B E (Hl)

from investing activities Ak ] (41,742) 181,848
Financing activities il 3 B
Increase/(decrease) in amount JRE A ot A% 2 e A ) 2 K JE

due to ultimate holding company ¥, (Wb 216,000 (129,000)
Secured bank loans drawn down TEHUA HE A SR AT R Ak - 62,343
Repayment of other loans A g At B 3K (12,673) (217,036)
Other loans drawn down 2 O il £ 3K 20,000 50,000
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes BEAT R e B 5 R P A5 Ak 0E - 107,853
Redemption of convertible notes [ DEE Y ¥ 27 (146,317) -
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid B A A R AR A 4 (1,055) (1,270)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred shares Wi Jag§ 2 W) AT BE SR IR 2

by a subsidiary Ji A3k T8 25 75,000 -
Contribution from minority shareholders A B R & - 756
Decrease of restricted cash 2 R il 3L 4 ik A 4,043 507
Interest paid oA A S (20,819) (80,322)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) MEBHZHERA

from financing activities (%) &4 134,179 (206,169)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and B4 M Bl & 2 a3

cash equivalents (9&A) 27,571 (22,167)
Cash and cash equivalents RMHH—HZB 4K

at 1 April Bl &S ED 7,835 29,526
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EE bo, 5 W) < 5 2 253 476
Cash and cash equivalents RE=A=+—HzZHEK

at 31 March Bl &S EHY 23 35,659 7,835

The notes on pages 47 to 133 form part of these consolidated financial WATH B E133EZ M s B AR 4 & Mk

statements. Zgﬁﬁﬁ} °
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1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak 3 0 5 e o Bk

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding,
securities trading and provision of management services to subsidiaries,
whilst those of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Company has its listing on the Stock Exchange. The Directors
consider the immediate and ultimate holding company to be VXLCPL,

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below and have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as modified
by the revaluation of the available-for-sale financial assets and
the financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative

instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

1.

— i & Bl

ARAFZ EEEHKEBERER BHE
B K 16 PR T 2 AR AL BEIR - H
i Jg > ] =2 2 B SR G SO A A B A i
ZMEE18 o

VNN DS o I S
Jik L B B w M B Or 2 VXLCPL A 3% K
B AR A T o

FERFEHBOR

B A KR £ B B AR T PR 2 R At
BRI T » BB IR 5B W] - 5
HABFAERFTRMAE 2

2.1 f AL W

A4 W Ao 5 B 5 R R T AR R
Rk A A 2 (o
e Q) (1A v B 2 e o e S0 1) 4
B o TG AR TR JBE B AR : A
B> MRk A, T B T A X
BAFEEREG IR B E
2R B s A B (AT A R AR
H BT o

Annual Report & #t 47

2009/2010




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_F—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

At 31 March 2010, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$287,247,000. It mainly consists of the outstanding payments
for acquisition of budget hotels and short-term borrowings.
Subsequent to the year end, the management has obtained
agreements by the lenders to extend the repayment of certain
short-term borrowings totaling HK$324.9 million. As disclosed
in the Company’s announcement on 25 June 2010, the Group
has also terminated or proposed to terminate the acquisition
of 10 hotel properties, which has reduced the Group’s capital
commitment in relation to acquisition of hotel properties
from RMB43.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$49.1
million) to RMB12.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$13.7 million), and the deposits of RMB48.4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$55.0 million) paid by the
Group would be refunded by the China Post Group after
deducting the respective penalties. In addition, as disclosed in
Note 33(a), the Group has disposed of a hotel properties located
in Daying, Sichuan province for a consideration of RMB22.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$25.0 million). The
management is confident that with such expected cash inflows,
the Group is able to meet its obligations. Moreover, the ultimate
holding company of the Company, VXLCPL, has confirmed its
intention to provide sufficient financial support to the Group so
as to enable the Group to meet all its liabilities and obligations as
and when they fall due and to enable the Group to continue its
business for the foreseeable future. As such, Directors are satisfied

that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial obligations

as they fall due for the foreseeable future.

2. ERGHEBOR (8)

2.1 #Ha B (4])

Mo -BE=ZH=+—H A
45 A it B £ 15 i #287,247,000
T Z 1 AR A R A K B A K o
AR H A - B E SR
KON ] 72 51 48 %324,900,0009 76
Z 5 5] A AROR 3K o AR
ARR_R—REANAZTHH
T8 2 Ak REE T
1k B T 4 1k W - [ O
3 - fif AR AR B A T Mk O O A 3
Z B A R HE N R H43,100,00078
( FH 25 1% 949,100,000 7T ) 3% 2
= A\ R H#12,100,00070 (H 274 %
13,700,000%5 78 ) > HH |58 85 e 42 e
T 1 B AH B kA% - IR AR
fit Z N B ¥48,400,00075 (AH 27
#155,000,000%5 JC ) 4% 45 © WL A > W
Bt 5833 (a) BT 35 3% - A< 1B 6 Hh B o
DY I 2 K 2 R 2 5 3 > R
N R ¥22,000,00070 (H 2574 £
25,000,000% 78 ) © MB# % 5 FHI B
WA HHEA E O AREE A G
T EAT B o PR > AR A R Z e K
5 e A F] VXLCPL B 1 8 L 1 A<
4 1 SR AL & 4 A S - DA A AR
W2 DA RE £ B0 2 B A B % R
s o A A< 5 A T T S ok A 4
F82 M2 o R b - B I AR 4R
M 56 2 A RE ) i AT TE SR 2 HE £
B B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in Note 4.

(a) The following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations have been effective for the first time for the

current year’s financial statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 32 (Amendment) HKAS 32 (Amendment), “Financial
and HKAS 1 Instruments: Presentation”, and

HKAS 1 (Amendment), “Presentation
of Financial Statements — Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation”

HKAS 39 (Amendment) HKAS 39 (Amendment), “Financial

and HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement” and HK(IFRIC)
— Int 9, “Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Improving Disclosures about

Financial Instruments

2. EERGHEBOR (4)

2.1 HR LR (4)

A BLAT £ A U T o I 2 A
FMBRATERMNA TERY
sl R > [ R AR 2 A L A
A Bt BOR 2 8RR b A A
B o B 95 R o I PR M v AR
M2 5 T > BB M Al R A
S 785 i A 3 R K S B 2 0 T - ot
18 Rk 44 5% o

(a)  BAFRHral RAAERT gAY ~ 15
7T Rt FE B AR A JEZ B
2 LY

BREORAEE  HERENZR
(&37)
BRETHENALSE  BERA
(&T)
FREHRASE  FRATHRAEE (7
(BTk)REE &) [HETL: 28R
LEESIEIL S 3 1 AU S
k) [oBaEEN28-
T ERE T AR R
[ 1%4 (i1
FREHRAS0E  FRATHEAE0R (7
(BTAR)REE &) [HETH R Rt
(EBMERER  BIREE(ARYER
BZEG) -2 HRBZEG) -2B
B o [N TAZE
Hith
BREMERGRN  DRBBEEGHNEE
S (TR BRlERES
BREMERGRN  MBTLHE-BETAN
BT (BTA) Bk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ = F —FF=H=—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) The following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations have been effective for the first time for the

current year’s financial statements (Continued)

HKERS 8 Operating Segments
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in

a Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
(effective for transfers of assets
from customers received on or after
1 July 2009)

Annual improvements to Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

HKEFRSs 2008*

The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs issued
in October 2008 except for the amendments to HKFRS
5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations — Plan to sell the controlling interest in a
subsidiary”, which is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009.

2. ERGHEBOR (8)

2.1 #Ha B (4])

(a)

PL Al RAAE 7T 7y AR ~ 15
Al Rt RE B KR AR JEZ Y
B (H)

BRUEREEN  BEAR

sk

A (RBUERE  ZPBGHH
HREAR) -

REEIE

B (RBEERE FHERERR
RREAE) -

i3 LIy

Bk (ABEHRS  WOERRREZHN
HREAR) -

AR5
Bk (ABRHRS  REBAZEREE (30
REEEE) - ZEFAELA-AEM

it FRENERHREE)

CRRVERRE  WATRERBREENL
WhEREENC B
ERyE

o REERH _FFENETA
BAfl 2 S S 2 i o i B
Z A O - MR FF L
FEH - HRZBRHIRZ 4
JBER I A 5 A 9 A o ot
e [ 58 S Y 2 A8 WA [ 4540
Hi 8 2 IR B B M T Ak
REE SR — wh il A T
Ji§ 2 7 Z 5 S mE 2 ] Bk A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2. EERGHEBOR (4)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) The following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations have been effective for the first time for the

current year’s financial statements (Continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of the HKAS 1 (Revised), HKFRS 7 (Amendment) and
HKEFRS 8, the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements and there have been no significant changes to the

accounting policies applied in these financial statements.

. HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. The Group has elected to present a single
statement of comprehensive income. The financial
statements have been prepared under the revised

disclosure requirements;

. HKFRS 7 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”. The Group has adopted this Standard
on 1 April 2009 and has disclosed the fair value
measurements by level of a fair value measurement
hierarchy. As the change in accounting policy only
results in additional disclosures, there is no impact on

earnings per share; and

e HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments”. The Group has
adopted this Standard on 1 April 2009 that segment
information is presented on the same basis as that used
for internal reporting purpose. Details of the segment

information are presented in Note 5.

2.1 HR LR (4)

(a)

LR aT RAAE 7T Ry R ~ 15
7l Rt RE B AR A JEZ Y
B (A

B DA 3 — 2 [R5 o o )
RIS 19E (RAEaT) - Wi
B A ISR 7R (BT )
B 7 s Bk 5 e o v B 285 2
b2 LIRE ST RS S
R A v B O o L SR
S5 5 o S A ) T OK M
MR UM HERE RN Z
W wH BRI TR ) o

o BHWEEHERE R (K
) [HMEHRENE
HloARLHE OB
UENTLVE L EF N ]
s H R O BR AL AE AT
ML A

o AU E R RS 7R
(ERTA) T3 T H:
W - ALEEOR F
FHAEMA — HEMA
Q) - 3 DL T AR R
B A AT Z R
B o FHR B )
HECRSM R > BB
i A1 b S 5 5 5 R

o TV R SR 8 5E
[ o 8] - AL H B
REFFMENMA—H
PRAILAER] - SRR T
HABEHRHAERAZ
) B e 251 o 4338 R
GREVA HSEY]E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_F—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEGEBOR (4])
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 R e (%)
(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing (b) [ AR A 3 e K 45 [ it JE 42 17
standards, that are not yet effective and have not been carly 1R 2 2 Y J% B 17 HE Al G 15
adopted by the Group TR

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

T 51 H sk 2 % B iR

B4 67 w300 B A 3%

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
A o ah e I SR 2458 (RAEHT) #2275 ¢ R —F—-—4E—-H—H
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial 1 July 2009

Statements

A o Ak e ) SR 27 9% (KRBT Ao S A o B s —FFMELH—H
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues 1 February 2010
AW E L3258 (BT A) Bz 4 B “E-FEH—H
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1 July 2009

Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items
FWEEEH R399 (BFTAR) METH ARG ER-GEFKEWEE ZFFEALFEELH—H

HKEFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of HKFRS 1 July 2009

AU W RS R (KRBT IR AN A 8 S 5 o v 1 ZRFAMEEA—H

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First-time Adoption of HKFRS — Additional 1 January 2010
Exemptions for First-time Adopters

AWM BH AR (BRTA) B KIRA A W I 35 o e 1 Z&F—FHF—H—H
—H R E Z BN R

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment — Group Cash-settled 1 January 2010
Share-based Payment Transactions

s B 5 i R RS20 (AERTAC)  DUJBE A s S B8 1A Ak — 4 I B 4 45 0 Z&F—FHF—H—H
VA A7 7 HE B A 3K 32 5%

HKEFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combination 1 July 2009

W B R SRR (RBRT)  EHE AU “RFAMEEA—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEFGEIBUOR ()

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1 AL HE (4)
(b) 1 A 2 5% Je 2 JE 8] i JE $E 2

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards, that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 5 (Amendment)

R Z i [ Je B 77 5 Qg 15

Al Rt (H)

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

T A H gz % B iR
B w30 e A A

1 January 2010

v BB O R SRS HE (BRTA)  FiE B 2 IR B A K —E-FE—-H—H
O IERE
HKERS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2013
A 5 L 75 o Y T SR 0 R MH TR —“E—-=4——H
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009
(WM ERERBEEE) HEAASIREREEE “EZhELH—H
— e BESR 179
HKIFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with 1 July 2010

B (BTSSR REEET)
— B SE 1998

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2009

TRBJUAE A U B O e R
ZAR Y

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

TR AR A U B R R
ZAR Y

Equity Instruments

DA e i TR G 8 B 5 £

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

B0 T A o S e o S 2 A8 T

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

B0 T 7 v S o o ) 2 A8 T

“F LA

1 January 2010

1 January 2011

—g——F—A—H

Annual Report & #t
2009/2010

53




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_F—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards, that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the related impact of adopting the above new standard,
amendments and revisions to existing standards to the
Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and

presentation of the financial statements will be resulted.

In addition, HKICPA also published a number of
amendments for the existing standards under its annual
improvement projects issued in October 2008 and May
2009, certain of which has not yet become effective in 2009.
These amendments have not been early adopted by the
Group and are not expected to have a significant financial

impact on the results and financial position of the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to

31 March 2010.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the group

controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group and are de-consolidated

from the date such control ceases.

2. ERGHEBOR (8)

2.1 #Ha B (4])

(b)  if A A 34 Je A 5 [ 5l e 727
TR Z i [ Je B 77 5 Qg 15
il Rt FE (#)

A 55 [ C B 4G F Al BR A b At
e R~ B o R 2 AT K&
U AR G B A BB - A
A5 VG R R T A2 8 A A SR
Pz fr ah R R B R 2
2 R R A )

BEAh - A wh A  CAR R
HpRZZFNEFET+ARZR
FRETA N EZEELRE
T H AR 2 S BLA R 2 A8
A HHCE TR R FL
A1 AR AR R o AC AR I 4
RGBT > T ST
Ao A5 2 R B
AR D 2 o K B s 2

2.2 BiAIH

o B s R RS AR A ) R L B
fEHBAFRKRE —2—F4E=H
=t+—HIikZ B E#HE-

(a) ML A

Wk S 2~ ) 7 A 45 T AR R
Wb B % 488 BUSR DL B i
Wt AR REZ A
B o 75 FF g AR [ R A o i
75— NE > B AT A7 s T
AL EAER R FEER
BT HRE -

FhF Jag 23 W] 42 ) R RS A A
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7 2 T R Ik A R AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognized directly in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income (Note 2.8).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds from the disposal of the
subsidiary and its carrying amount as of the date of disposal,
including any attributable amount of goodwill and any

related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses (Note 2.8). The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2. EERGHEBOR (4)

2.2 &R H (%)
(a) M4 w (#)

A 55 [ DL ik g A 52
A P W S . B B 2 ] B © WL
JiE A A 28 5 H A 4
FI 84T Z JBA T 1, - LB
Rk 2 B Z A PR
B> T i R A 2
JRAR o AE A3 F v 2 ATl
e T D P R M 2 B %
sRAR UG - SR WO B R
APAEAR A0 5t - T
75 WU SRR 2 2 WORR o WO IR
7% 8 708 A 4% 1) A T B B
W S ¥ P E 2 B
AL 5 T R o G WA SR AR R
Fie WALt O Jeg 2 ) 3 R
A > %2 WA R AR AR B 2
Weas 2 MRS (FFRE2.8) o

ALEBET AT MZ 25 &
ik B 22 B AR 5 B WK 4 HL A
B o A 5 B s 45 7 €7 35 5 o B
J&§ 2 W) Z P BUR TR W
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognized at cost. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any

accumulated impairment loss (Note 2.8).

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognized in statement of changes
in equity. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments

on behalf of the associate.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses (Note 2.8). The results of associates are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2. EERGHEBOR (4)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with

the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the

Company.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation

currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
and loss are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial

assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for ecach statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part

of the gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEFGEIBUOR ()

(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

2.5 Y3k - HE A Bk i

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 3 - R PR N A R b AR U
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. =78 R B AL 1R A B o B
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to BRAS L B R A B IE B
the acquisition of the items. ZPX e

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

FoAR A B A B H B 2
H 45 A8 5 1 25 51 I\ A 45 M B
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e N R W K R S b R
AR AR 43 T L A

— Hotel properties 20 years — W fE Y % — 4
— Furniture and fixtures 3 — 5 years U E S =R
— Office equipment and machinery 3 — 5 years — N R T e =EFE
— Computer and related equipment 3 — 5 years — B R H P =S4
— Motor vehicles 5 years — K TilE

Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An impairment loss is recognized immediately to write down an
asset’s carrying amount to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.8). Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are netted off or
recognized within ‘Other operating expenses’ in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses (Note 2.8). Cost represents
consideration and directly attributable transaction costs paid or
payable for the rights to use the land for periods between 30 and
50 years. Amortization of land use rights is calculated on the

straight-line method over the period of the land use rights.

2.7 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of
the acquired subsidiary, associate, or business attributable to the

Group at the effective date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses is
included in intangible assets while goodwill on acquisitions
of associates is included in “Interests in associates”. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity or
business include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the

entity or business sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. Any excess of the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates or businesses, is recognized immediately in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2. EERGHEBOR (4)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill,
are not subject to amortization, which are at least tested annually
for impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortization
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivable and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. The Group determines the classification of

its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short-term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in

this category are classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Continued)

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at
fair value. Transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the ‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
category are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within ‘Other (losses)/gains,
net’, in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as part of other operating income when the Group’s

right to receive payments is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as ‘Receivables, prepayments and
deposits’ and ‘Bank balances and cash’ in the balance sheet
(Notes 2.10 and 2.11). Loans and receivables are carried at

amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2. EERGHEBOR (4)

2.9 W% & E (4)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in any
of the other categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the Group intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months after the balance sheet date. Investments
are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs

and subsequently carried at fair value.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized
in equity are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as ‘Gains and losses from investment

securities’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as part of other operating income when the Group’s

right to receive payments is established.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are
analyzed between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortized cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. The translation differences on
monetary securities are recognized in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income; translation differences on non-monetary
securities are recognized in consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are recognized in

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2. EERGHEBUR (4)

2.9 M5 & E (4)

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as

little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in consolidated statement of comprehensive income
— is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Impairment of

receivables, prepayments and deposits is described in Note 2.10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

2. EERGHEBOR (4)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Receivables

2.11

Receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
‘Other operating expenses’. When a receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against ‘Other operating expenses  in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less from date of investment and bank

overdrafts.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incidental costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal
of a financial asset or financial liability, including fees and
commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes
and duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using

the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it

relates.

Compound financial instrument issued by a subsidiary of the
Company comprises preferred shares that are convertible to
common shares of the subsidiary, and the number of shares to be
issued does not vary with changes in their fair value. The liability
component of the compound financial instrument is recognized
initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have
an equity conversion option. The equity component is recognized
initially at the difference between the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability
component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the liability component of the compound financial instrument is
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component of the compound financial instrument is

not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Convertible notes

At initial recognition the convertible notes is separated into
derivative components and a liability component. The derivative
components of the convertible notes are measured at fair value.
Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially recognized as the
derivative components is recognized as the liability component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes

are recognized as part of the liability.

The derivative components are subsequently remeasured
in accordance with Note 2.14. The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortized cost. The interest expense
recognized in profit or loss on the liability component is

calculated using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair
value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is charged

immediately to profit or loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that
they relate to items recognized directly in statement of changes in
equity, in which case they are recognized in statement of changes

in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date, and any

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted
for. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance

sheet date are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as

interest expense.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incidental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or

paternity leave are not recognized until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Bonus plans

(c)

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognized as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and

a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions are based on a certain percentage of the

salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEFGEIBUOR ()

(Continued)
218 & B Al (4)
(d) DL 75 HE 52 F 1

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, known as Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme”). The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognized as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet
date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. It recognizes
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining

vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably on the following bases:

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

Income from hotel room rental, food and beverage and
other services is recognized when the relevant services are

provided.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is

recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis

using the effective interest method.
Realized gain/loss on trading of securities is recognized as

revenue on a trade date basis.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive

payment is established.

2.20 Leases (as the lessee)

(a)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Leases (as the lessee) (Continued)

(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other short-term and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period so
as to produce a constant rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.

221 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognized but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that

the outflow is probable, it will then be recognized as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognized but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK
dollars”), United States dollars (“US dollars”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from its investments which are located in the PRC.
Considering that the exchange rate between HK dollars and
US dollars is pegged, and that Renminbi is appreciating,
the Group believes its downside foreign exchange risk is
minimal. The Group does not use any derivative financial

instruments to hedge its foreign exchange risk.

As at 31 March 2010, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 10% against HK dollars, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss for the year and total equity would
have been HK$2,506,000 and HK$37,341,000 (year ended
31 March 2009: HK$1,034,000 and HK$36,170,000)

higher/lower respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credir risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
receivables, investments and bank deposits. The exposures to

these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of receivables, the Group closely monitors the
credit performances and prompt repayments from the
counterparties. Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from receivables,

prepayments and deposits are disclosed in Note 22 to the

financial statements.

In respect of investments and bank deposits, the Group has
diversified its exposures into different financial institutions.
It has policies in place to assess the credit standing of the

counterparties and financial institutions before the Group

invests its assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources
including bank borrowings, orderly realization of short-
term financial assets, receivables and certain assets that the
Group considers appropriate and advantageous to dispose
of. Equity and other long term financing including strategic
partnerships, or strategic joint ventures are also considered
by the Group in its capital structuring. The Group’s
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of the Group’s
available cash, bank overdrafts and other interest-bearing
loans. The ultimate holding company of the Company,
VXLCPL, has confirmed its intention to provide sufficient
financial support to the Group so as to enable the Group to
meet all its liabilities and obligations as and when they fall
due and to enable the Group to continue its business for the

foreseeable future.

The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve
which comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B R B A B ()

(Continued)
3.1 BAEE Bs R & (4)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) W E b (%)
The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s TERIIMBHEERMEEH
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings ZHABHH Z %65 5 5
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the A AR B o AR 8 ) 2 B B R
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the i AH B 30 40 40 B A AT Z 43 AT o
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances W P B BE 2 A A

due within 12 months approximates their carrying balances,

as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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Less than Between 1
1 year and 5 years
—4EN — A
HK$’000 HK$'000
i3t Tt
Group 7 4 M
At 31 March 2010 R-ZF—-FE=H=1—H
Other borrowings Al £ 3¢ 325,511 1,193
Liability component of BEMBETLRZ
compound financial instrument HEER & 10,150 12,375
Payables and accruals JRE A 7k T T M 5 3E 95,056 —
At 31 March 2009 RE-ZFFAME=HA=1—H
Other borrowings F Al £ 3% 167,377 1,769
Convertible notes G Y& - 80,398
Payables and accruals JRE A 7k T I R 3 EH 97,417 =
Company Y /|
At 31 March 2010 R-ZF—FF=H=1—H
Other borrowings Al £ 3% 278,631 =
Payables and accruals JRE A 5k T % IR H 2,474 -
At 31 March 2009 RE-ZFFME=H=1—H
Other borrowings H At AR 3 58,413 =
Convertible notes CIE Y& X - 80,398
Payables and accruals JRE A 7k T % M w3 3,380 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. The Group monitors and limits its interest
rate risk exposure through management of maturity profile,

currency mix and choice of fixed and floating interest rates.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets,
the Group’s interest rate risk arises from its borrowings.
Borrowings bearing interest at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings bearing
interest at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group manages its interest rate exposure of

borrowings with a focus on reducing the overall cost of debt.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, if interest rates on the
Group’s floating rate borrowings had been 25 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, post-
tax loss for the year and total equity would have been
unchanged (post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2009: HK$1,261,000 lower/higher), since the Group only

had fixed rate borrowings during the year.

3. s b B ()

3.1 [ B A R (4
(d) Bl i 4 Je A0 (6 F) % B

7% 55 [ R B 2R H BRAT A
AR B AG K o AR SR 28 000 PR
A B BRI
FE R > B R R A R
JE B o

H 7 A 45 [ SiF 48 KRR L
B > WA AR [ A R e L
Rk o $&F By A ARG Z ik
A A 55 [ K % Bl 4 i B A R
N v i e U S s
A A 55 [ AR % 0y 7 A 3R R
Bt o A S5 [ 28 008 O T A
HE 5 5 A A B £ sk 2 A1
R i o

RE-F-FHE=A=1+—
H k47 B > i A 42 18 v ) )
R Z BRI W25 MH 18 -
T B A At 58 B AR e AR 5 > AR
A7 JE B B AR M H B RE 2% 48
WA (RE_BRBRLESH
=1 H I E RBA A
¥,/ 941,261,000 78 )
3 25l A AR AR AR 9 R T
& Fl B A K o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

3. B ke A B (4)

3.2 ¥ A L b A BE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard

the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for

shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to

ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between

higher shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher

levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by

a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economics conditions.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The

gearing ratios at 31 March 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

A A B A Z AR A R AR
5 AT B T 2 JBE SR B A4 [
Be X Fp AR Z BRI B o A
V0 A0 i Y B AR A - DA
i AR AT S5 1 T AR A - A T
SRCIE e (FT HE P B R A KK )
LR A 2 AR DL AR 2 A A K
DRI 2 ] TBAT P 47 > Sl PR 68 3 19
U5 Bl T ) A A o

oA 15 A B4 0 b 4
Ao R RRE R BRI
H= B2 AR A T -

2010 2009
SE-E CRRLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T-#o0
Total borrowings and convertible notes 8 K B AT 4 B S 4 A 4

(Notes 26 and 27) (Bt &E26%27) 326,704 249,544

Less: restricted cash, bank balances ik : 5% PR Bl 4 - SRAT 4G R
and cash KB 4 (35,659) (11,878)
Net debt 5 s 291,045 237,666
Total equity WE 25 4B 8 145,473 174,780
Total capital MEE 436,518 412,446
Net debt/total capital ratio EHFHE BEELR 66.7% 57.6%
Net debt/total equity ratio R AR R 200.1% 136.0%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 W 5 e ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Effective 1 April 2009, the group adopted the amendment to
HKEFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the
balance sheet at fair value, this requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1);

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level

2); and

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level

3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that

3. s b B ()

3.3 &P A6t
HZRZHENH —H - AR%EH
BN B AR R A T EE R Y
B T H PR A0 7 i S o B 57
RZAETTA - PLAE T ACHLE # T 51
A FAE G RE #R 8 o P Z R
B

o A IF) A E Bk B G BE T
ZHE (R EE) (F—
M) s

o BRSE AP EE K R R S
ANZ 58U A T sk AL
S g NSO B (B
#y RS ) SR B (B ARG A A
%) BRI A (5 240 2 &

- fAHEESRAMZWAZEY
3 I KL T B T S g (B
A A ) (=
) e

TR F-FFE= A=

are measured at fair value at 31 March 2010: H A £ 4% Oy P 5t & 2 B E K
ffE:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B B=M ok
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$000
T THE  Twx  F#x
Assets #HE
Available-for-sale financial assets A fit th £ B 7 & &2
— club debentures — & P % = 2,111 = 2,111
Financial assets at fair value WA TEZE BB
through profit or loss B M 2 B s e
— unlisted securities -k L % - - 31,111 31,111

- 2,111 31,111 33,222
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B R B A B ()

(Continued)
3.3 KNP Z Mk ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s

length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are

observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

TG H 2 M TR Z AP
B T4 6 7 LR H 2 T 5 AR
HEE o W22 5 Pt ~ R 5 v ~ ML~ AT
SEALAK - e fe 2 7 BB B R VT B
IR M R Ry i - U R T 2 A
T R - T AT R AR SR 4 2 o B
B RABHIETZI NGRS -

WHERFEET S EEZLMHE TR
(s A TR ) Z AFE TS
AR B T7 $5 A = % S5 167 5 4
BRI P WY L v B A W
NG Ao A2 9 A AR B A A o A
EAE TR A F AR 2 BOK o A\
AR > A% TR A GE e

ik — S Bk 2 T T OK A B
F T L v h > B R B
NBE=He

Ty Y 785 T LA A6 B 68 T = 8 A

include: B J5 ¥ B4

*  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar e BRI TRAZWHMEERLS
instruments; T R A

e Other techniques, such as inputs from recent arm’s length o FEAIICALTT B (RERIEH AT

transaction or discounted cash flow analysis, are used to

determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

There was no change in carrying value of the level 3 instruments

for the year ended 31 March 2010.

3 5 2 I\ MR B 4 1
S A4 ) A S0 B T
2 A

RE-Z-BE=ZA=+—HIk
R > 5 A T B R T 0 3 A
E‘]o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note

2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated

financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and

other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

(a)

(b)

Classification as investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether the acquired hotel properties
qualify as investment properties. In making its judgment, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independent of the other assets held by an entity and the level
of ancillary services provided to the tenants. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to
property but also to other assets used in the production or supply
process. Taking into consideration of all the factors, the Group
considers the acquired hotel properties to be owner-occupied

properties.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and depreciation
rates for its property, plant and equipment. The Group will revise
the depreciation rates where useful lives are different to previous
estimation, or it will write off or write down the value of those
assets which are technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that

have been abandoned or sold.

4.

PN CHE L ]

A6 8 FH b SRR RE2 i 2t R R 2 i AR
H s ARG AR R B B A B R R
o T . 4 L T K R 2 I o PR
2R Z B R AR B i 7 AR A A
w2 A KR B (f A7 FE K
Je oy 25 B I R R S A T AR AR
P A M A i AR TR )
T T 3C ko

(a)

(b)

BB EMERETZTAN
3
AEEBEMEZ T EDERESR
BB T BB W 3 o AR M AEAR
Hh P R o % B SR A 2 B
i I B R A AR AR KRR BB SR
— B R 2 A E - A K
) L SR B IR 2 R o
HRE YRS Z Bl A ER
Sy A B > 7 A it M A R
HR B8 2 S04t 5 2 A B o % B E
B A PR AR > AR TR s P
ZWIEWEREEA Y-

o3 ~ B AR B wk il 2 vl 18 A
£/

ARG e 3 AR R
il R RT3 P4 0 % B R o i T
JH A5 391 B Wi A st A B 22 00 - AR 4R
VB 51 £ TE BT 855 3% > I G sl ik
TE B AE B3 IRF 2 B B T 3 A B
Hi B 2 I SR e P A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Income taxes

It is the Group’s policy to recognize deferred tax assets for
unused tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilized, based on all available evidence.
Recognition primarily depends on the Group’s expectation of
future taxable profit that will be available against which tax losses

can be utilized.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill or assets that
have indefinite useful lives have suffered any impairment. Other
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an
asset or a cash-generating unit has been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates, such as discount rates, future profitability and growth

rates.

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment

information based on the regular internal financial information

reported to the executive directors for their decisions about resources

allocation to the Group’s business components and for their review of

the performance of those components. The business components in

the internal financial information reported to the executive directors

are principally engaged in (i) hotel investment and operations, (ii)

property investment, and (iii) securities trading and investment.

4. BOREEH RO B (4)

(o) Prfemi

AP A SR [ B SRE - i  AR  Bi A T
B > HARAR AT RESE A R A R
it i ) A 1K 89 A Bl A0 S A 1 >
A8 A5 T 2 R B B IS 4R e R
HE S BLIE 7 o % S DA
A ) B AR o A K B
N 4} 2 W SRR i ) 2 A B

¥ 7 W AE

A T 3 LA AN O 4R PR 2 7
B E RV BERI K D
RS Y BUE T AR © & A AT A
H 1 R U BLAEAL > BRI Ath ¥
JAE 2 M T FL 8 Y T e el - Bl
7 B % 5 A L IR AE O o
ol B 4 2 A B AL 2 W] Wi (BT 4 TG
F B R AR R E o Bt
FHEMMITBLR - HRBAIGEN
Be 3494 R 4 Al 5t

5. BIEB L EE R

(d)

AR [ B 8 ) 1 AT #E R RS 2 R
W 25 B Gk 8 A 43 T % AR L 4y B A
B o T 5% 45 P B S R T AT S
T 16 A 45 ) 2 S AR R 40 43 TR Y R AR
H e 3R M 25 B 5% S AL R o 2 K B o 1)
AT EFRREZNBBEERNZE
5 AL B 3 B T ()WY B M
()P EBE s KGisF HE RIE -

2010 2009
R FHE ZFRFLS
HK$’000 HK$’000
it Tl
Hotel room rental and other fee income W s & e FH 4 M 3Ll 8 A 1,908 =
Other rental income H A4 A - 2,211
Net realized income/(loss) from BAHEEEZOEBWA
trading securities (FE18) &5 421 (12,316)
2,329 (10,105)
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit which is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments. Summarized details of

the business segments are as follows:

a)  the hotel investment and operations segment is engaged in hotel

investment and hotel operations;

b) the property investment segment is engaged in investment
in properties . The Group will continue to look for quality

properties for future investment;

c) the securities trading and investment segment is engaged in
securities trading and investment and other investment holding.
The revenue of this segment mainly comprises net (loss)/income

from trading securities; and

d)  the unallocated segment comprises operations other than those
specified in (a) to (c) above and includes that of the corporate

office.

Capital expenditures comprise additions to investment properties,
property, plant and equipment (Note 15), land use rights (Note
16) and construction in progress (Note 17). Segment assets consist
primarily of property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
construction in progress, investments and receivables. Segment
liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated assets and
liabilities mainly represent assets and liabilities used by the corporate
office, which cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to any
segment. They include items such as deferred taxation and corporate

borrowings.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

BRE B E R (4])

AR ] 2 S T A 4 A R B R
BB IR 25 1 4 B 8 ) A B o ACAR I
SE5 5 W A R — {1 SRE W S 75 LA -
Lt 7R 5% JE I 2 o A T A ) S A 3
B oy o SEHE R Z REIG MR AN E

a) B R Ay T AE I B
B A

b) YEBESARBFRENRZE
HHL o A 55 T A A 6 B R S AR
H 1% % % Al i

o W HEEKEESHAREESF
HE BRERHMBERER I
Mzl EEAEEFEE
(B 48) WA F# s K

d) RHOBIEHSHELEX(Q)FECHE
Frale DL A 2 S0 - A 55 AR 45 [ 3 2R
PR o

N ERIRIT /S L E REVE DY 1033
WM (PR RELS) ~ A o i P RE (B RE16)
BAe 2 TR (W RE17) 2B o 5 B &
B H Y - BT Sl - LA
e TEE TR - 4 M K JE AL -
g3 ¥R E AR AR R AR AL o R A3 I B
Be B4R T2 B4 b AR SR [ 0 = O 5 ) L
VA $% £ BIL AL e 43 0 24T 7 23 3 2 ¥
Be SUA > 645 08 JiE 50 O S A SR AR ik 6 IH
H o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BRI L wER (4)
INFORMATION (Continued)
The segment results and capital expenditures based on reportable RE_F-ZRER_RFLE=A
segments for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009 are as follows: = H R4 B - HT R 4 IR Ay 2
SRR T AP L
Hotel Securities Total for
Property investment & trading & reportable
investment operations investment segments  Unallocated ~ The Group

WERE  HHREE LE
B3 a4 341 AEEE o EWAE RAKEH AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T T#T T#T T#T T#T T#7

For the year ended 31 March 2010 REZZ-FE

ZH=ZF—HEEE
Segment revenue: 2 bW g :
Sales to external customers HNEFHE - 1,908 421 2,329 - 2,329
Segment results 3R A 736 (34,901) 415 (33,750) (34,416) (68,166)

Change in fair value of the embedded T # /it 5% 4 P ik X

derivatives component of MAETR#BSZ

convertible notes (Note 6) AP (ko) - 2,626 - 2,626 2,626 5,252
Finance income WHWA 6,304 24 - 6,328 6 6,334
Finance costs [£3:95% (5,782) (44,415) - (50,197) (47,468) (97,665)
Share of losses of associates AN T A ) i 45 = = = = (33) (33)
Loss before taxation IR s 1 1,258 (76,666) 415 (74,993) (79,285)  (154,278)
Taxation B = 3) = 3) = (3)
Loss for the year A s 1,258 (76,669) 415 (74,996) (79,285) (154,281)
Other segment information Jofl 43 50 B
Depreciation and amortization YT 3 - 4,942 - 4,942 797 5,739
Capital expenditures BB

— Property, plant and equipment S EN Y] - 56,537 - 56,537 46 56,583

~ Land use rights — k£ i R - 25,092 - 25,092 - 25,092

— Construction in progress —GRTR - 10,014 - 10,014 = 10,014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BEHESWER (4)

INFORMATION (Continued)

Hotel Securities Total for
Property investment & trading & reportable
investment operations investment segments  Unallocated ~ The Group
% 4 % it % 2§ LEiE
MR E R k& #E AAE RAREH AL
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T Tl Tl Tl
For the year ended 31 March 2009 RE_ZFNAE
ZA=Et—HILEE
Segment revenue: 2 WA :
Sales to external customers g F§E 2,124 87 (12,316) (10,105) = (10,105)
Segment results Vol B (41,216) (33,825) (15,655) (90,696) (76,949) (167,645)
Wiite off of goodwill upon disposal of 1 £ 8 % #) 3 W4 8
an investment property Z s (18,314) - - (18,314) — (18,314)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B O 2 ) 2 A 54,071 322 - 54,393 - 54,393
Change in fair value of the embedded 7 4% Bt 5% 85 Py ik 58
derivatives component of M TR#ESZ
convertible notes (Note 6) ATAEEE (Hiiko) - 11,218 - 11,218 11,218 22,436
Change in fair value of derivative MiEMBETHZATH
financial instruments (Note 6) S (fike) - 13,646 - 13,646 13,647 27,293
Finance income WA 28 138 - 166 15 181
Finance costs B R (29,668) (12,573) © (42,247) (56,164) (98,411)
Share of losses of associates JREAL Wi 8 A ) s = = = = (96) (96)
Loss before taxation i B i i (35,099) (21,074) (15,661) (71,834) (108,329) (180,163)
Taxation BLIE 29,087 - - 29,087 - 29,087
Loss for the year 4 i 1R (6,012) (21,074) (15,661) (42,747) (108,329) (151,076)
Other segment information HoAt 73 5 B
Change in fair value on investment ~ BEWEZ A FHED
properties (Note 6) (H3Eo) (379) - - (379) - (379)
Depreciation and amortization i T e 142 6,824 - 6,966 1,059 8,025
Capital expenditures BB S
— Investment properties B3 LUES 116,463 - - 116,463 - 116,463
— Property, plant and equipment S EN YT 23 21,554 - 21,577 3,014 24,591
— Land use rights e ik - 26,752 - 26,752 - 26,752
~ Construction in progress —TeR L - 11,413 - 11,413 - 11,413
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BREBM o ERER (#)
INFORMATION (Continued)
The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as at 31 R BERCERBE=ZA =4
March 2010 and 2009 are as follows: H > 42 ] #1543 &6 #1432 o3 30 & E R A
o
Hotel Securities Total for
Property  investment & trading & reportable
investment operations investment segments  Unallocated The Group

WERE  HHREE LE
B3 a4 341 AEEE o EWAE RAKEH AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T T#T T#T T#T T#T T#7

At 31 March 2010 R_F—FH
=H=+—H

Segment assets OB 48,445 497,468 6 545,919 8,084 554,003
Interests in associates T8 A F S - — - - 96 96
Bank balances and cash TR R B & 9 11,923 - 11,932 23,727 35,659
Total assets 03 80 48,454 509,391 6 557,851 31,907 589,758
Segment liabilities SR 23,296 59,934 = 83,230 36,120 119,350
Other loans Hoft 3% 46,304 = = 46,304 = 46,304
Amount due to ultimate JE £ g 2 4

holding company A RE 4,009 93,295 - 97,304 181,327 278,631
Total liabilities AR 73,609 153,229 = 226,838 217,447 444,285
At 31 March 2009 R-BBNE

ZH=+—H

Segment assets SR 134,271 364,650 1,977 500,898 8,836 509,734
Interests in associates T8 A F S - - - - 129 129
Restricted cash 3% WL 8L 4 - 2,022 - 2,022 2,021 4,043
Bank balances and cash MATR R LB & 7 5,543 - 5,550 2,285 7,835
Total assets 0:3 50 134,278 372,215 1,977 508,470 13,271 521,741
Segment liabilities SR 25,697 38,933 = 64,630 40,863 105,493
Other loans and convertible notes At 8 T o e I 4 57,970 87,512 - 145,482 37,573 183,055
Amount due to ultimate R o d 2 422 T

holding company AR = = = = 58,413 58,413
Total liabilities A 83,667 126,445 = 210,112 136,849 346,961
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BREBERSEER ()
INFORMATION (Continued)
The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the PRC. The A S [ 2 SR A TR N A U R b AR
segment revenue for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009 B-BEF-FERFFNE=A
and non-current assets as at 31 March 2010 and 2009 based on o el = 15 V52K 75 A % 7 s 19
geographical area are as follows: DR R —FER BRFNEZH
= — H $H ] 4 2 FE B A E R A
W
2010 2009
—ER-FHE  _EFhE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T oo
Revenue L&
Hong Kong s 421 (10,192)
PRC i 1,908 87
2,329 (10,105)
Non-current assets IE R By &
Hong Kong s 13,492 5,261
PRC 5 432,796 390,409
446,288 395,670
Revenue is categorized based on the jurisdiction in which the Wi 2 4 % 5 P A ) 5 RE [ AT 43 -
customers are located, while assets are classified based on where the ¥ 7 B 4 7 B AE M 47 40 3 o

assets are located.
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6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OTHER GAIN/(LOSS), NET

Ak 3 W 85 e ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

6. JLALE A (1R % #

2010 2009
—“ERE FRFLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt Tl
Change in fair value on investment properties BB HEZ N THEH) = (379)
Unrealized loss on financial assets A PFHEBEBERIIRZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEEZ R EE - (1,619)
Change in fair value of the embedded derivatives CIE Y &8 S R & Wei i =N
component of convertible notes (Note 27) Z A FasE) (Fsk27) 5,252 22,436
Change in fair value of derivative financial A A BA B T HL 22 O\ P 5 )
instruments (Note 27) ( Bt E27) - 27,293
5,252 47,731

STAFF COSTS

The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all

Directors’ emoluments (Note 14(a)).

7. 18 BlA

ToChE B4R B 2 R B RAS (R4
R WA (FEk14@) ) °

2010 2009

R -RE EFLE

HK$’000 HK$°000

il Tl

Directors’ fees ERE 1,241 1,127

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits S 4 S At 5 391 0 B A A 25,233 57,373

Unutilized annual leave AR B Z 4] 337 17

Employee share option benefits 11 5 i B A i A 382 3,037
Pension costs — Mandatory Provident Fund R4 BRAS — T e O A 4

(Note a) (Bt 5Ea) 165 211

Social security costs (Note b) A1 PR AR (B RED ) 1,535 678

28,893 62,443
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

7. STAFF COSTS (Continued)

Note a:

Note b:

There were no forfeited contributions during the years ended 31
March 2010 and 2009. Contributions totaling HK$Nil (year ended
31 March 2009: HK$28,000) were payable as at 31 March 2010.

All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC
excluding Hong Kong who are PRC citizens participate in employee
social security plans enacted in the PRC, including pension, medical
and other welfare benefits, which are organized and administrated by
the government authorities. According to the relevant regulations, the
Group contributes on a monthly basis based on certain percentages of
the salaries of the employees, subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid
to the labor and social welfare authorities. Contributions to the plans

are expensed as incurred.

8. OPERATING LOSS

7. R WA (4)

Bt 5ika

Fif kD

BE_R-FZER_ERZNLE=
HE+—H L4 - W ek ez 4t
KRB —FRE=ZH=1—H>
JE AT Bk MR B B o0 (RE
BZEALE=ZH=Z+—HILHEE:
28,000¥ 76 ) ©

AN Z A (R 45 7 ) FE 8
AFARAETRARZIEEYZ
B 4T 2 0 B A A R B
] o % S k) P B AR R O A
B> A 4 AR AR 4 - R % LAt
A o 22 R B RL 09 > A 45 I 4 H
MEB R B #4241 F 4 b 55 1
T AL o7 A ARG BA 1R Bk (M
AT LR o ri skl AR 2 B OR
A I 32 8 o

8. REEHE

2010 2009
—“E-RE FFIE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 7t T#T
Operating loss is arrived At SR s E R AT B

at after charging/(crediting): (FFA) -
Legal and professional fee BN EL 724 8,096
Consultancy fee L 2 44 4,791
Rental income from investment properties HEMEZHEWRA - (2,124)
Direct outgoings for investment properties BEWEH X = 574
Depreciation and amortization - WE 3 5,739 8,025
Provision for impairment of receivables, R WALk I~ LA AR B

prepayments and deposits 45 VAR F35 45 5,427 =
Provision for impairment of property, LERE Y &

plant and equipment AP 488 A 50 8
Gain on disposal of property, JiE L 3 - A SR 2

plant and equipment vyl (467) (433)
Auditor’s remuneration A% B T

— audit —HH 587 990

— non-audit — % 278 664
Net exchange loss/(gain) FESE MG 1 (A ) 54 564 (1,241)
Operating leases — land and buildings R E — o i 13,483 13,668

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

9. FINANCE INCOME

9. M#EWA

2010 2009
R B ERNS
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Bank interest income SRAT A B A 31 181
Interest income on receivable from JFE W — T i B g A W AR Z
a former subsidiary AR WA 6,303 -
6,334 181
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. il & A
2010 2009
SR -RE SERNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Interest on bank loan wholly repayable AR N B EAE IR Z
within five years BATERZ B = 598
Interest on bank loan not wholly repayable AR LR BHE IR Z
within five years SRATE R Z A B - 22,095
Interest and finance costs on convertible notes ] 6 JBE 5 48 2 A B T il R AR 76,100 22,754
Interest on finance leases il LR B 160 150
Other interest and finance costs on amounts N AR N B R 2 S
wholly repayable within five years Fo b A BB il R AR 21,405 52,814
97,665 98,411

11. TAXATION

11. Bt JEH

Hong Kong profits tax is assessed at the statutory rate of 16.5% (year
ended 31 March 2009: 16.5%) on the assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the

jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

T v R 45 B8 7% AR B 47 P R ERBE ¥k A 4
16.5% (ME _FFNAE=ZHA=1T—H
IEAEJE 2 16.5% ) Z ¥ 2 Bl R A - ¥ 4h
i ) 2 A0 T R 4% A 5 T A8 T O ) 9
HE [ 2 708 P 50 3 A T 2 4 P R LA i
FHHE
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

11. TAXATION (Continued) 11. 868 (%)
The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the consolidated AEEmWREERNCIE (5FA)=Z
statement of comprehensive income represents: BIE &S
2010 2009
B FHE  EFLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tl T ilh5e
Current tax BVHA A6 15 3 1
Deferred tax R S B T = (29,088)
3 (29,087)
The tax on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from the theoretical A A (5 53 A58 T s L = 50 I B 94 46 P R
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable B W) SR IR T35 B R i 4 B
to the results of the consolidated companies as follows: i B Z ZE BN
2010 2009
—RFHE TS
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T¥T
Loss before taxation B Bt 1 M 48 (154,278) (180,163)
Share of losses of associates JE A 5 2 A =] 1R 33 96
Loss before taxation Io 36 I s 1L
— Company and subsidiaries — 2R i) B P A ) (154,245) (180,067)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable 29 1 7 4% ) 3 R I i ) 2
to profits in the respective jurisdictions B R G B (27,591) (37,680)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT B B 3 2 Bl T 5 B 17,075 31,117
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue B B 25 =2 B JE 5% (2,444) (25,334)
Tax effect on temporary differences not recognized A%l #8 Z B I 26 B = i IE 5% 2% 4 (21,727)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets A T 0 90 i ok JE K P 2
was recognized 75678 i 15 12,959 24,537
Tax charge/(credit) BiE I (%) 3 (29,087)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

12. A 2> vl HE 48 7 A N A 48

12.LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company is

13.

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent
of a loss of HK$102,297,000 for the year ended 31 March 2010 (year
ended 31 March 2009: profit of HK$63,285,000).

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER
ORDINARY SHARE FOR LOSS FOR
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the
loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

years.

13.

M s 18

AR F AR NIRRT —
FESH=1—HIEFEZARAFIRER
A N A4 A e 45 2% i 4H 102,297,000
Wit (REFFILFE=ZA=T—HIL
AR B« %2 M) 63,285,000 0 ) ©

A o vl R R AN AN AR
W N 18 2 B B A A AR
Btk 8 v A

(a)

5 e 5 9 JBe K A i 1 T3 DA AR A
2% v HE 25 F5 A N B4 S 1R PR DL B
BEAT W 8 Bz I 3 BEE 5 o

2010 2009
—2-BE  CEBAE
Loss for the year attributable to equity A o ERE 2R FE A N AL
holders of the Company, HK$ 000 EREHE T#ET (154,281) (150,407)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares T 347 5 7 it Z fn#E
in issue Py 1,529,600,200  1,529,600,200
Basic earnings per share, HK cents T I He A i B > WAL (10.09) (9.83)

Diluted earnings per ordinary share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The conversion of all
potential ordinary shares arising from share options, convertible
notes and warrants would have an anti-dilutive effect on the
earnings per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2009.
There were no convertible notes and warrants outstanding at 31
March 2010, and the conversion of all potential ordinary shares
arising from share options would have an anti-dilutive effect on
the earnings per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March
2010.

(b)

i JE 5 28 B B e M G R A
AL T8 A 305 B 0% 3 B A
AR > 128008 A B 0 Tt 2 R T 2
BB o S 6 N B MR ~ T 8 SR
5 % w0 B R R T A 2 P A B AE
LERGHBRE_ZFNE=A
Zob kA A B B i A
TR S o N R RS
H = H I AT 7 i R SR 2
T 450 e 5% Bk B A R - T S 4 I
Sl T AT A2 2 P AT AR O I
THBEE_F-FF=ZH=1—
H k47 B2 2 4 JBe 3 28 JBE i A 5
P 2 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14, ¥ 35 J i 2% 45 2 e T 4
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EHME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the BEZF-FE=H=1+—HIL4E
year ended 31 March 2010 were as follows: FECAT A & R 2 B

Employee ~ Employer’s

share  contribution

Discretionary Other option to pension

Name of directors Fees Salaries bonuses benefits™* benefits scheme Total
&4l
R BARastH

3% e #e o ML RN WRERR  felizfist ot

HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000
Tk Ttz Tibx Tk Ti#x T#n Ti#x

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (i) BRI () = = = = 180 - 180
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO (i) it S (i) - 5,326 - 674 180 12 6,192
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei (iii) 0 9 2 i) 341 545 - 486 = = 1,372
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, .2 PEATAL: 300 - - - - - 300
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ] 2 EMREL AT 300 = - - - - 300
Mr. David YU Hon To S 300 - - - - - 300

1,241 5,871 = 1,160 360 12 8,644
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14. 3 3 J2 5 %58 1L E T <
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (%)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EFME (H)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the BREZZFNE=ZHA=Z4—HILE
year ended 31 March 2009 were as follows: FECAT S 2 FE o 2 i

Employee ~ Employer’s

share  contribution

Discretionary Other option to pension

Name of directors Fees Salaries bonuses benefits™ benefits scheme Total
{Ed]
BE ket

EHEA e Fa O MERRL  REEN BRERN  Fhzd A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (i) FEHBEG) - = - = 211 - 21
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO (ii) At B & i) - 5,349 30,000 651 211 12 36,223
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei (iii) H M e 2 i) 27 590 273 298 - - 1,388
Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi (iv) FREBL L (v) - 368 - - 70 4 44
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.. S kT A 300 - - - - - 300
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].2 BRI KT+ 300 - - - - - 300
M:r. David YU Hon To T ek 300 - - - - - 300
1,127 6,307 30,273 949 492 16 39,164
** Other benefits include housing allowance. o HARE R A 5 R o
(i)  An Executive Director, Datuk LIM Chee Wah has waived his (i) BITEFEERFERRERE
emolument for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009. “E-RERTERIJLEZA

Z=t—HILFEZ A -

(i)  Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO has tendered his resignation (i) e S A 4R HH A - N B
with effect from 7 August 2010 to the latest, or any earlier date to R4 )\ H L H S
be mutually agreed. B Z AT o L H 4 A 2K o
(iii) Appointed during the year ended 31 March 2009 (i) RBEZZIFEZH=Z1+—H
IRAE AT
(iv) Resigned during the year ended 31 March 2009 (iv) PNEEZFFNFE=H=1+—H
IR 4 B BHE
No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to BEFZ-RER_ETZLE=
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of A=+ —H L4 B - A 5] 3 £ |
office during the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009. REEE SRR B (&
A 55 I A A 45 T A A 4 ) I

Annual Report 4 #

2009/2010 95




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 W 5 e ik (%)
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

14. % 3 Jo v 4058 B E T <

(b)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year comprise 2 directors and 3 employees (year

ended 31 March 2009: 3 directors and 2 employees). The details

of the emoluments payable to the 3 employees (year ended 31

March 2009: 2 employees) during the year are presented below:

(%)

EE3 I8 N n

A4 B A 4 ) T4 B R 2 A
TEFEmMAERR=AREE (K2
ZRFAME=ZA=Z+THIEFE:
SHEFLWARER) o4 NER
ZEARE (REZFFAE=ENA
=h—HIREE:HARE) ZM

EREZFIW T

2010 2009
"R -RE EFLE
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Tl T

Salaries and other short-term Wi 4 B At e 3]
employee benefits 1 5 & # 4,255 2,974
Employee share option benefits 1 B i i HE 1 A1 - 463
Pension costs — defined contribution plan B 4 AR — E A K T 22 12
4,277 3,449

Number of individuals

N i

2010 2009
“E R ZEFIF

Emoluments band T 4 i
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001% 76 — 1,000,000 I 1 .
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 — 1,500,000 7T 1 .
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 JC — 2,000,000%% JC = 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 %5 78 — 2,500,000 7T 1 -
3 2

HK$340,000 was paid to one of the five highest paid individuals

as an inducement to join the Group during the year ended 31

March 2009. There was no such payment during the year ended

31 March 2010.

BEZZAE=A=Z+—HI
RS REFNALAREHFALZ
— 3% £340,000% JG - 1E % % 55 I
AREEZ G/ & - KE T —F
E=H = H k4R S
AT A B 3K JH o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 #¢ £ —F—FF=H=—1—H ILF/E

15. P03 ~ B 4% K e ffi

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) Group (a) ASSEHE
Office
Furniture equipment Computer
Hotel and and and related Motor
properties fixtures machinery equipment vehicles Total
VNS ] B K
WEnE GREER Bt 2% I 3 H Lk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T WL
Cost A
At 1 April 2009 REZZNENH —H 154,892 12,420 7,232 2,029 4,330 180,903
Additions wE 56,010 490 10 73 - 56,583
Transfer from Construction e AL R TR AR
in Progress (Note 17) (WaE17) 13,552 3,601 = = = 17,153
Disposals i B (2,585) - = = = (2,585)
Exchange difference 5t 2 597 29 23 4 3 656
At 31 March 2010 RERRAE
=H=+—H 222,466 16,540 7,265 2,106 4,333 252,710
Accumulated depreciation Zitint
At 1 April 2009 PRERRNUENA—H 4,693 11,585 1,673 779 865 19,595
Charge for the year A B X 322 691 1,355 276 847 3,491
Disposals J& B (61) — - - - (61)
Provision for impairment AR - 50 - = = 50
Exchange difference [ ot 7 4 15 21 7 1 1 45
At 31 March 2010 RE-F—FH
ZA=+—H 4,969 12,347 3,035 1,056 1,713 23,120
Net book value ik T 5
At 31 March 2010 A S 308
=ZH=+—H 217,497 4,193 4,230 1,050 2,620 229,590
Cost A
At 1 April 2008 REZFZNENH—H 132,748 11,417 7,229 1,087 3,243 155,724
Additions wE 19,150 569 262 1,256 3,354 24,591
Disposals & B - (26) (419) (324) (2,295) (3,064)
Exchange difference e i 2% 3 2,994 460 160 10 28 3,652
At 31 March 2009 REBRNAE
=H=+—H 154,892 12,420 7,232 2,029 4,330 180,903
Accumulated depreciation Bt
At 1 April 2008 REZZFFNENA—H 1,134 10,669 375 636 1,085 13,899
Charge for the year o] b 3,533 462 1,408 209 773 6,385
Disposals & B = (6) (117) (68) (1,001) (1,192)
Provision for impairment Tk L 985 £ - 8 - - - 8
Exchange difference FE i, 7 % 26 452 7 2 8 495
At 31 March 2009 RZRRIAE
=H=+—H 4,693 11,585 1,673 779 865 19,595
Net book value Ik T A
At 31 March 2009 RZBRNAE
=H=1-H 150,199 835 5,559 1,250 3,465 161,308
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 903 ~ B s Skt (4)
(Continued)
(b) Company (b) A4 H
Furniture Computer
and Office and related Motor
fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
AL K WAZE G P
KE Wt B R FioK |
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T T T T T
Cost BA
At 1 April 2009 R EERUE
/WH—H 5,062 87 480 - 5,629
Additions wE - - 46 — 46
At 31 March 2010 BB R4
=H=Z+—H 5062 87 526 - - 5,675
Accumulated depreciation Rl #
At 1 April 2009 R BRI
/MH—H 5,019 83 474 - 5,576
Charge for the year AN B 3 43 4 10 - 57
At 31 March 2010 KRR
=A=Z+—H 50602 87 484 - - 5,633
Net book value I T ¥
At 31 March 2010 R
=H=1=H = = 42 - 42
Cost B AR
At 1 April 2008 B FER )\
WH—H 5,062 94 490 1,161 6,807
Disposals Ji - @) (10) (1,161) (1,178)
At 31 March 2009 RZFRILE
ZH == 5062 87 480 - - 5,629
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z il #
At 1 April 2008 R_FF)\E
WA —H 4,701 73 449 658 5,881
Charge for the year 4 P B 52 318 17 35 78 448
Disposals i E - (7) (10) (736) (753)
At 31 March 2009 RZRFNLE
=A=Z+—H 5019 8 e = 5,576
Net book value iR T 5 1
At 31 March 2009 RZRFNLE
===l 43 4 6 = 53
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(c) The net book value of motor vehicles held under finance leases of
the Group and the Company were HK$1,967,000 and HK$Nil
respectively (2009: HK$2,557,000 and HK$Nil respectively).

None of the leases include contingent rentals. The lease terms

are within five years, and ownership of the assets lie within the

Group.

16.LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in land use rights, which represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values, are analyzed as

15. ¥ 3% - He o Je el (48)

(0) AHEM KA ) DL & RLE P Ff
Z FCHL IR T A 43 B 251,967,000
W RFWT (ZFZILE: 4
742,557,000% 70 X FWIC) © % F
L O 2 AR L o LR AR I
T TLAE N - T S T AR Ja A 4R 1
Bi A o

16. - M {5 i BE

A KR L e M B 2 MRS (e BEAT AL
B R RO S HE R R E ) AT

follows:
Group
A4
2010 2009
—B-BE  CREAA
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tw#oT
Cost: BRAR
At 1 April RMHA—H 65,186 37,582
Additions 7 25,092 26,752
Disposals iz B (6,818) —
Exchange difference [ ba, % % 236 852
At 31 March R=A=+—H 83,696 65,186
Accumulated amortization: Zah e
At 1 April RMHA—H 1,848 203
Charge for the year SE N BH X 2,248 1,640
Disposals i B (199) -
Exchange difference [ ba, % % 9 5
At 31 March W=H=+—H . 3%6 1,848
Net book value G T 5
At 31 March R=H=+—H 79,790 63,338
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

16. LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued) 16. + 3l £ FH BE (%)
The Group’s interests in land use rights at their net book value are AGE R L o M 2 2R (HH R T
analyzed as follows: HAEFHE) S E -
2010 2009
“Z-FE ZEFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#t T#L
Outside Hong Kong, held on: BWELA - B DL & H I F54 :
Leases of less than 10 years THE T ZHE = =
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEHEELHEZHE 79,790 63,338
79,790 63,338
17. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 17. 16 T2
Group
AL
2010 2009
“EF-RE FFLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T Tt
At 1 April WA —H 11,416 =
Additions NE 10,014 11,413
Transfer to property, plant and equipment LS EL/E DY Eo Y &4 (17,153) —
Exchange difference [ 56, 7% 48 25 3
At 31 March BR=A=+—H 4,302 11,416
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

— RN
18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. Fff J& 2 W] HE &
Company
y: N/
2010 2009
“EFHE ZEFIF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T
Non-current assets: I U B B e
Unlisted shares at cost I b B > HR AR
(Note) (K &E) 330,000 —
Current assets: i By &
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wit B} JiEg 2 R 2k 186,763 416,127
Less: provision for impairment loss ik < I A NS 4R 2 A (53,173) (49,510)
133,590 366,617
Current liabilities: i B 1
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A A IS A R Z kI 53,319 -
Note: “U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited (“UIHHL”), a wholly-owned PRk = PR A A8 05 G 2 B A FR A =] (TR
subsidiary of the Company, has issued preferred shares to a third party M BRI ] - AR A R 2 & W8
during the year, as disclosed in Note 25. As a condition to such issuance, 2] ) AR R — 4 50 = 0 BT
the Company subscribed an additional 7,409 common shares of UIHHL J6 It o R N B k25 B B o R IR B
at a total consideration of HK$330.0 million. The consideration was A7 48 e B 2 J v — TR 5 s A 8 )
satisfied by the set off of certain intercompany advances made by the ZH H A8 ARE330,000,000 9 G 2 i
Company to UIHHL. 67,409 I AR B B AR 42 Je 1 9 e

A7 B AR 78 o S 6 A A ] i AR
FARPE A 2 T4 A T Bk 2

J5 A o
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest JEW HE A i g /] =2 5k 0 T JEE HE A ~
bearing and repayable on demand. The carrying values of the amounts B J, % B SRR o E M HE I A
due from/to subsidiaries approximate their fair value. The amounts ) 22 5k T8 2 W T BN S I R o i
due from subsidiaries as at 31 March 2010 and 2009 and the amounts BBIER BREBIE=ZA=F+—HZ
due to subsidiaries as at 31 March 2010 were all denominated in HK VR Wz B JB A ) 2 R OE DL R A R AR
dollars. Sy ES RN EY o1 ] VS ES ety
Yo atE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZFE—FFE=ZH =1—HILFZ

18. Bt & 2 vl BE 4 (%)

UFRAR % REZAZT—HZ
T A 24 44 9 S O 24 T
L EL L D 0 2 B 4 -

18.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2010.
Principal subsidiaries are those subsidiaries that are active and have

commenced operations.

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
kA RAL /L CRATIRA/ Rh ¥ A
4 W R E R EX S/ Y E 3] AR B 8% 2 A i i e
2010 2009
ZF%FF ZETWE
Arrow Star Investment Limited * Hong Kong Inactive 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
HKS$1
AR EARAR ik 7 43 1B T 1B 2 1370 2
W e A
Chong Qing “U” Inns & PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Hotels Management Co., Limited * liability company in PRC US$2,000,000
TR 1 % A 1 A R g 7 H B 0 A Ak A
LG 2,000,003 7%
Daily Right Limited Samoa Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1
HIEA AR T e e W I YR AE R 1RTEZ
B B A
Grand Boom Investments Limited Samoa Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1
oG e A8 A LA i R TEAF B 7 M BT 21578 2
B A
Great Partner International Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
W P A R - it TE 75 B 4 BT {25 13T 2
Iy
Great Partner Investment PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited liability company consulting in PRC HK$8,000,000

MR () A IRA R

T 1 B A L
8 o R

(Subsequently increased

to HK$12,000,000)

Ak % 48,000,008 7

(JE% 4 %12,000,0008 1)

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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18. Pt J&§ 2> vi) HE i (%)

Particulars of issued

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities

share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
kB E /L CRATRA/REM A
& 1 M 56 B vk A ER-F 3 YS-E3 0 R o 2 sl i i
2010 2009
“2-2E RS
Proper Class Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
BmARAR it TE T B 4 e BT B2 19T 2
W
Rich Field International Limited Samoa Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1
I A R 3 0 T 7 8 B ¥ 45 e 2B A 15RTEZ
T e e A
Success Key Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong US$1
R B IR A7 TR A ) Sl R LA B TE 7 1 B HE e IR A1 2
T A
Sun Shell Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
B HA AR ¢ ik TERERE IR 1B AL 2 1385 70 2
Bt
Superior Fortune Investments Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Limited * in Hong Kong HKS$1
HEREAMAF ik TEFF R IR LB AL 2 1386 70 2
0 e e At
“U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 7,410 common shares of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong US$1 each and 2,590 Series A of common
preferred shares of US$1 cach shares
R 14 5 B 1 AT FR A by e it TEFF B I 74108 IR 18158 76 2 *100%
BB 12,5900 49 B T L
1ETLZ ARF B el
“U” Inns & Hotels Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Investment Limited * in PRC HKS$1
R 4 5 R 1 A7 R ik 7 F B 4R 0 1B T B2 1386 70 2
0 e e A
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18.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities

18. Pt J&§ 2> v HE i (#5)

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
LM B/ B CRATIEA /M7 A
& 1 M 26 B ik A EX S0 Y- E3 ] R o 2 st i 5 A
2010 2009
“2-RE ZRBAE
“U” Inns & Hotels Management Co., PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Ltd. Linzhi Tibet liability company US$2,200,000
P AR 20 B 7 B O A g > LEE Ak A
HRAT HIRRIEA T 2,200,0003 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Bu Er Jin) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company in PRC US$1,390,000
R B AR 1 4 B (A TR ) g 7t B A ik 7 A
ARA ARIHEAH 1,390,000 75
“U” Inns & Hotels (Chengdu) PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
Investment Management Limited liability company consulting in PRC US$2,000,000
TR HY % B I ) B 7 . TE v B 4 B k7 A
FIRA T H R AR ik il IR 2,000,003 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Ding Xi) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Limited * liability company US$3,000,000
TRH % B (E T ) i) 4 21 g LR FS Ak A
ARAT AREEAT 3,000,0003 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Dun Huang) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Limited * liability company US$3,700,000
TR I %8 (BUE ) 7% 7 3 . 73 Ak E A
LY LG 3,700,000 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Jin Chang) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company US$1,147,980
TRENEAE (&8 ) HE i g > LEE kA A
HRAH HIREIEAT 1,147,980 70
“U” Inns & Hotel (Jing Gang PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Shan Shi) Limited 2 liability company in PRC HK$53,000,000
TR B AR 0 (B 1) 717 g 7t 3 A ik A
HRAH ARIEAH 53,000,000% 76

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED

104 b 4o gty I 24




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  18. [ 8 2 "l HE %% (48)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued
establishment and Principal activities  share capital/registered capital
Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
kB E /L TRATIEA /R A
& 1 M 56 B vk A EX S0 Y- E3 ] R o 2 sl i 5 i 4
2010 2009
“2-2E RS
“U” Inns & Hotels (Long Nan) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company RMB18,500,000
IR i % % (RER ) 3050 4 g LEE kAN R
H IR HRRAEAT 18,500,0007%
“U” Inns & Hotels (Ninghai) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company in PRC US$6,000,000
R (S ) )% 4 B g A7 F R 7 A k¥ A
A RAF HRRAEA T 6,000,000 75
U Inns & Hotel (Si Chuan) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Limited * liability company in PRC US$10,500,000
TR H % BT I (9 ) A R ) - A7 F R A k7 A
H R AR 10,500,005 7¢
“U” Inns & Hotels (Tong Hua) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd liability company in PRC US$2,670,000 (Subsequently
decreased to US$2,249,000)
{9 % B AL ) 0 7% 7 51 - A7 H B 7 A ik it ¥ 72,670,000 £ 7
FIRA T F LA (JLA% 1 %2,249,0005% 78 )
“U” Inns & Hotels (Tu Lu Fan) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company in PRC US$1,770,000
0 1 5 R 1 (k6 76 S ) g A7 F S 0 A Ak A
ARAT ARFEAT 1,770,000 7%
“U” Inns & Hotel (WeiFang) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Limited * liability company in PRC US$4,550,000
TR % BRI I (50 ) A7 A7) g 7 F B 1 A AL E A
LY G| 4,550,000 70
“U” Inns & Hotel (Wei Hai) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Limited liability company in PRC US$1,670,000
IR 1 % B I () A7 IR 7 g 7 F R 1 2 ik A
HRRIEAT 1,670,000 7%
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18.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities

18. Pt J&§ 2> v HE i (%)

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
AL WA A CEAT A /A A
4 5 e A R ECE YL E3 YUt Tierzaid i % B i
2010 2009
CER-RE S CERRWE
“U” Inns & Hotels (Wu Han) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company in PRC US$1,400,000
R i % ke (R ) )5 4 1 R 7 v 7 4 Ak it A
FRRAT AL A 1,400,000 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Xi An) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company in PRC US$10,100,000
Rtz (V% ) i i 4 B s e v 8 7 ¢ % [RUAE
FIRAT AR AL A 10,100,00037C
“U” Inns & Hotels (Xiang Fan) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company in PRC US$3,470,000
TR A % b (8% ) i 16 P I A7 v B 3 4 il it A
HIRAT HRHEEAF 3,470,000 78
“U” Inns & Hotels (Yun Fu) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company US$2,600,000
TREE (Z 7 ) i 1 g LR IE 3 ik it A
HRAF HIRFEA R 2,600,000 7
“U” Inns (Wafangdian) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Hotel Management Co. Ltd. * liability company in PRC HK$28,000,000
TR RS (B0 I ) 3 6 B g 7t I 3 4 ik it A
HIRAF HIRFALA A 28,000,000 76
“U” Inns (Yingkou) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Hotel Management Co., Ltd. * liability company in PRC HK$39,500,000 (Subsequently
decreased to HK$25,650,000)
RIS (8 1) i 7% 45 3 O 7 H B O 4 Ak % 7439,500,000% 76
HIRAH HIRFALA A (JE4% W %25,650,0008 1)
“U” Inns Hospitality Management PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Co. Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$$2,000,000
HLZ A B (L) ARA g > 7 v B B L B R Ak A
HIREE A 8 o T 2,000,005 7t

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  18. [ 8 2 "l HE %% (48)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
kB E /L CRATRA/REM A
& 1 M 56 B vk A ER-F 3 YS-E3 0 R o 2 sl i i
2010 2009
“2-2E RS
“U” Inns & Hotels Information PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
Technology (Shanghai) Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$2,000,000
R % (L) 15 B Hde g 7 i e 4 B % ik i A
HRAH ARFEAH il JR 2 2,000,003 76
“U” Inns Investment Management PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$2,000,000
R (L) B i o g et e 4 B ik i A
AR ARIUEAH it R 2,000,000 76
VXL Corporate Advisory (Shanghai) PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$140,000
o A SR PR () - e o B B 4 B ik A
F AT HRHEMEAR ot ot I 5 140,000 76
VXL Management Services Limited * Hong Kong Management services 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
L L A R ik TE 75 U B 0 5 0 MR 2 1B A AL 2 1385 70 2
e Bt A
VXL Nominees Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1 each
ik TER WA G I MG BT 19 T 2
0 e e A
Yanlian International Petroleum British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%
Limited in Hong Kong
S i A R S B JE LB TEFF B I VBT {21882
W I By
* Shares held directly by the Company. - JBe 4y AR Oy W ELEEREA ©
A These companies do not have English names. These are only translation of A EEE ] M S o A A R R
their Chinese names. Hor e 4 Z Bl o
# Subsidiaries audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. # FoF )85 2> w1 i 2 S Rk 28 8wt B S s i

HH
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The Group’s share of the results of its associates, all of which are

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. Wi 2 o 7] HE %
Group
A4
2010 2009
“E-EE CETIE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Share of net assets/(liabilities) WEAL B AR EE
of associates (fafR) &# 96 (771)
Amounts due from associates JRE W Wt 2 A ] k0 - 900
96 129
The movement of the interests in associates is as follows: e A v R Z BT :
Group
L |
2010 2009
S -2E  CEFELE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T-#o0
At 1 April WA —H 129 225
Share of losses before taxation JRE A B w1l Js 48 (33) (96)
At 31 March BR=H=+—H 96 129

AR T AG L 8 A W) (3 Bl ) Z 3¢

unlisted, and their aggregated assets and liabilities, are as follows: HEHBEERABMT :

2010 2009

TR RE RFLE

HK$’°000 HK$ 000

Tt T oo

Assets & 96 137
Liabilities =i - (908)
96 (771)

Revenues W 2% - -
Loss for the year GHE) Ei (33) (96)

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
R AT PR
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19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. i 2 vl B 4 (#1)
Details of the associates as at 31 March 2010 are as follows: R FEEZA =T HEE ARG
HESIF
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Interest indirectly held
Name establishment Principal activities issued share capital by the Company
4 kR L/ EERE CERATRATEN AN ARERH 2 M
2010 2009

SFRE CRBAE

Cruise City Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 30% 30%
US$1 each
e 8 L T By BRI 1008 B e i 18 76 2
W 3 M
Cruise City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Inactive 2 ordinary share of HK$1 30% 30%
(Note)
B (FE) ARA R il 7 43 215 B i T (B 1 T 2
(k) W e My
Note: Cruise City (Hong Kong) Limited has been approved for application of Miak: B (FB)ARAFDER =%
deregistration on 10 May 2010. — AR 1 H A v R R A
o
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20. AJ % 8 4 8
ASSETS
Group Company
A% A
2010 2009 2010 2009
—%-%F "RFAE "B-BFE "BRAE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

T T T T# T T#T

At 1 April BHA—H 2,111 660 660 660
Additions W H - 1,451 - -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 2,111 2,111 660 660
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20.

21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets represent unlisted club debentures of

golf clubs which are denominated in Renminbi.

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets are determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little
as possible on entity specific estimates. None of the financial assets
is impaired. The available-for-sale financial assets are not exposed to

credit risk.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20. ] B 0 B A (A)

B S A KRR P 2 Ik
B g A ss (AN REGHE) -

T Ak A A PR A
Tl 7B 5 o % <5 A B B 90 it B4 Y T B 4%
5 BeR (A - i B R A RO
B R S il W o WO 08 B 5 O U -
T 3t H R S S N R 2 A R o

21. A B R 85 A ik 2

W

Group Company
AL A2 il
2010 2009 2010 2009
“ER-F4E “FRFNE ZE-FHE FFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T Tl Tk T
Listed equity securities in FEEEZ B L
Hong Kong held for trading, JBe A % 7 -
at market value i fE - 1,964 - 1,964
Unlisted equity securities in overseas W#AMIE_b 1 B A58 % 31,111 31,111 - -
31,111 33,075 - 1,964

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented within
‘Operating activities’ as part of changes in working capital in the

consolidated statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in ‘Other gain/(loss), net’, in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

The Group establishes fair value of the unlisted securities in overseas by

reference to recent arm’s length transactions.

N PEIE R 35 B MR < T 5 S I ok
GHERBLRNREFED | NET -
REEEEEHZ o

BAFEZRHEBIR MBEEEZ A
i 52 Bl O\ AR A i R aR R [ At
BH 4R FH] W -

ASR M 2 HOE WA TR AT 2R 5
BE WA IE B R 2 NP AE -

110
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22.RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 22, FEWU K JE ~ TEAT 3K IE K $% 4
DEPOSITS
Group Company
A4 A4y 7
2010 2009 2010 2009
—EBE ZFRAE ZE-FE _FFLF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T T#T T#on

Non-current FE B
Receivable from a former JFEE Wi — i i S J 2 )
subsidiary Z R = 54,929 = =
Deposits for acquisition of e i 3 0 g
hotel properties 24 130,399 102,439 = =
___ 130399 157,368 - ___ o
Current B
Trade receivables & 5y FE W 3k 98 - - -
Other receivables I il JE W sk JE 13,611 13,583 6 14
Deposits for acquisition of AL i 3 3 g
hotel properties Z 55,006 22,624 - -
Receivable from a former JREE Wi — i i S J 2 )
subsidiary Z FIE - 34,012 = =
Other prepayments and deposits At T k0 B 4% 4 13,420 10,899 2,907 2,939
82,135 81,118 2,913 2,953
Less: provision for impairment I : PR AE A (5,435) - - -
76,700 81,118 2,913 2,953
207,099 238,486 2,913 2,953
A significant part of the Group’s sales are by credit cards or against A S 2 858 K HER 4 DL F R Ak ek
payment of deposits. The remaining amounts are with general credit HREH B A 2 3248 o R — R H M5 S
term of 0 to 90 days. As at 31 March 2010, the trade receivables age NFEENLTH R Z—FRE=A
within one month and are not past due. =+ —H B 5 EBURRZ R AE— A
VRSN ik
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22.RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 22. FEWr 3k JE ~ TR AT 3K JH R 1% &

DEPOSITS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of receivables, prepayments and deposits
approximate their fair value. As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, none
of the receivables, prepayments and deposits was impaired except for

certain deposits for acquisition of hotel properties.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s receivables, prepayments and

(%)

JRE WS I ~ LA s e 4% 4 2 W T i B
HAVHEMEE R B —FER_FR
NEZH=Z+—H > BRBOH Il EmEZ
AT 1A A o A WORK E - FH A K OH
Be 4% 4 th BLAE -

ACHR [ 2 HE ORI~ THAT SR R 2

deposits are denominated in the following currencies: MR THI L DA T 2 £ W R
Group Company
AL A2
2010 2009 2010 2009
SE-EE SRS CF-BE CEEAE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#t T T# T
Hong Kong dollars T 16,481 17,864 2,913 2,953
Renminbi AR 189,045 218,590 - -
United States dollars e 1,553 2,001 - -
Other currencies HoAlo £ % 20 31 - -
207,099 238,486 2,913 2,953

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the
fair value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The Group does

not hold any collateral as security.

T8 E R H 7R % Z B K AR BB
gt 5 S AR T 2 A T o 4R I
JE 5 A A A 454 5k AR 4R AR

112
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23.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. T iR LB &
Group Company
A 45 M YN/ |
2010 2009 2010 2009

“ERFE ZFTAE ZZFFHE ZFFTAF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T#T Ti#x T#T

Bank balances and cash in hand SRAT AR R Bl 4 35,659 7,835 325 922
The carrying amounts of the bank balances and cash are denominated SRAT RS R e B4 2 IR EE S DL R A &
in the following currencies: R
Group Company
AR B A2
2010 2009 2010 2009
“F-%E CEBIE SB-BE SERNE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000

T# T T#T T# T T

Hong Kong dollars Wt 19,868 1,702 24 636
Renminbi NG 1,648 2,563 = =
United States dollars EyIn 14,108 3,482 301 286
Other currencies H A& ¥ 35 88 - -

35,659 7,835 325 922
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24.PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

24. FEAF 3k JH R i H IR H

Group Company
A4 AW
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-FE ZERE ZF-FHE ERFILE
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tk T T
Trade payables & 5 WE AT R 3k
(note b) (KtaED) 59 - - -
Property acquisition cost payable JRE A5 49y S WAL Bl AR
(note ¢) (HfiEc) 3,050 7,732 - =
Other payables and accruals Al A K JE
et E H 91,947 89,685 2,474 3,380
95,056 97,417 2,474 3,380
(a) The carrying amounts of the payables and accruals are (a) MEATZKIE X ESHE H 2 BR i {E )5
denominated in the following currencies: VLR 5 £ s S
Group Company
A 4R A2 H
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E B ZRFE _EFE _FFLE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt T# L Tt
Hong Kong dollars N iSTH 39,691 36,317 2,474 3,380
Renminbi NG 53,812 59,531 = =
Other currencies HoA £ % 1,553 1,569 - -
95,056 97,417 2,474 3,380

(b) As at 31 March 2010, trade payables of HK$45,000 and
HK$14,000 (2009: HK$Nil and HK$Nil) were aged within one

month and between one and three months respectively.

(c) This represents the remaining balance of consideration payable

for acquiring one hotel property (2009: one).

(b)

(c)

HoE—BEZA=+—H -B5%
JRE A5 W 75 45,000% JG K 14,0009 It
(ZRBIE BB T RTHIT)Z
Ry ME—MANK—ZE=M
HWe

RO — W E R (ZFF R
A —IH) AR Z R -
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25.ISSUE OF PREFERRED SHARES BY A

SUBSIDIARY

On 28 October 2009, UTHHL has entered into a subscription
agreement where UIHHL agreed to issue and the subscriber, an
independent third party, agreed to subscribe for 2,590 Series A
preferred shares (“Preferred Shares”) at a total subscription price of
HK$145.0 million based on a subscription price of HK$55,984.55
per Preferred Share. The subscription price was partially set off against
the loans by the subscriber to the Group of HK$70.0 million, and the

remaining HK$75.0 million was settled in cash.

The Preferred Shares are convertible into 2,590 common shares
(“Common Shares”), representing 25.9% of the issued Common
Shares of UIHHL upon conversion of the Preferred Shares. Holders
of the Preferred Shares are entitled to a preferred return of 6% per
annum prior to the conversion of the Preferred Shares. Holders of
the Preferred Shares shall convert the Preferred Shares into Common
Shares at the ratio of one Preferred Share to one Common Share at the

latest three years from the date of issue of the Preferred Shares.

Details of the issuance of Preferred Shares can be referred to the
Company’s announcements dated 27 October 2009 and 29 October

2009. No conversion has been made during the year.

The Preferred Shares are compound financial instrument which is
separated into two components: a liability component and an equity
component. The liability component was recognized as the discounted
value of the preferred return payable during the three years period from
the issuance of Preferred Shares until the last date of conversion into
Common Shares. Interest expense was calculated using the effective
interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 10% to the
liability component. The equity component was residual value of
the proceeds from the issuance of Preferred Shares less the liability

component.

25. Fit & 2 W) B 4T B OBk

RoZERETAZ T NB KWK
s I AT S — TE B A R B R - B
TR W % A8 T e ) 38 B AT R N (8
S ET5) W E R 2,590 AR 5 B
el (TBESe ) - AR 45 o2 I 1 4 i
S6 E55,984.55% 70wl 5 > 48 R I AE A
145,000,000 JG © w2 i 18 & 43 DA w2 i
MNE T A H 2 55%70,000,000% 70 1%
8 > T £ 475,000,000 75 I DL B 4 5
o

B S Bt w4 A 2,590 B ¥ i ([ 7
JBE 1) o ARH B 7 1 5 B Atk R R 1) A
5 B O 88 47 35 48 B 2 25.9% o 18 56 Bt ¢
AN RE 0 e B s 3 i T B AR
6% 2 B S [l e o B S8 I HE A N R B e
JBeBE AT H H O BT RO =4 - 35— R
JBe i — B 35 908 e =2 Ll A o 5165 8 T Pt i
T 5 A B o

BT 2 R T 2 A A T %
FAAA LR 2RI
S 2 o 4 A 7 W 8

8 515 JBe s A B B T - 43 T WA 4
FUREHR 2> R RESR A 43 o SUBR r $R i o
Je B AT F R V5 B e Z B R H B =4
101 ] M A 2 A8 Sf T s 2 7 B A © )
B3 H AR R R B R A SR
W R 10% T 5 o B 2k 8 40 2 18 e I 3%
AT B 45 ok JEL R B AR 40 Z R A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_F—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

25.ISSUE OF PREFERRED SHARES BY A 25. [ 2 =) B AT B S ik
SUBSIDIARY (Continued) (#8)
The liability component is presented as “Liability component of AR IEGEEEARENZ TH
compound financial instrument” in the consolidated balance sheet. TR AURE A | o BRI 4 5
The equity component is presented as “Minority interest” in the TERERR SR B R N Z [ BB R RE#R ]

statement of changes in equity.

HK$’000

Tt

Proceeds of issue BT Ak E 145,000

Liability component A 5 (21,636)

Equity component HE 25 #6843 123,364

Liability component at date of issue REEATHE H Z A& 21,636

Interest expenses A B 3 889

Liability component at 31 March 2010 RE-F-FE=ZA=Z1+—HZAGKD 22,525
At 31 March 2010, the Group’s liability component of compound RoF-FE=ZH=1+—H REHKE

financial instrument were repayable as follows: GMBE TR ARG HEREWT :

Within 1 year — current portion —4E P — B[R 45 10,150
Between 1 and 5 years — non-current portion — A4 LA N — K BT 4 12,375
22,525
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

26.OTHER BORROWINGS 26. H: At £5 3%
Group Company
I A s 7
2010 2009 2010 2009
SE-EE CEBAE CF-FE BRI
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T # T Tt T¥oo
Non-current JE B
Obligations under finance leases Tl A AR I 1,193 1,769 = —
______ 1,193 L7 o T
Current BP9
Other loans FoAt 55K 46,304 107,909 — —
Obligations under finance leases A S AR I 576 1,055 - -
Amount due to ultimate JRE A5} 3 2 1 e A R
holding company K IH 278,631 58,413 278,631 58,413
__..32551 167,377 278,631 28413
326,704 169,146 278,631 58,413

At 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group’s and the Company’s other

borrowings were repayable as follows:

RO FERFFEE A
s ARSI B A A 7 2 A A MR

R
Group
95
Obligations under
finance leases Other borrowings
il L R ifS At £ 5K
2010 2009 2010 2009
“R-RE CREAE SB-BE BRI
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T# 7t T T
Within 1 year — current portion AN -y 576 1 1,055 ¢ 324,935 166,322
Between 1 and 2 years —EEWEN 607 576 - -
Between 2 and 5 years WA RN 586 1,193 = =
Non-current portion I B I 3R 43 1,193 1,769 - -
1,769 2,824 324,935 166,322
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_F—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

26. OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. At ik (#7)
Company
A5
Other borrowings
A £ 35k
2010 2009
R RE RFLE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T T#IT
Within 1 year — current portion — 45 A — BB 4 278,631 58,413
The obligations under finance leases are effectively secured as the rights H P T A1 DL RS AN R T
to the leased asset revert to the lessors in the event of default. HALN - WOl A S R I TR B ARG
o
Group
A5
2010 2009
R ZFFhAE
HK$°000 HKS$’000
il Tl
Finance lease liabilities il ¥ AL AL
— minimum lease payments: — I AR A 8% ik
Within 1 year —4EN 656 1,215
Between 1 and 5 years —AERERAEN 1,256 1,912
1,912 3,127
Future finance charges on finance leases 3cgiil- P gy S dil (143) (303)
1,769 2,824
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

26.OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. H At i 3k (44)

The effective annual interest rates at the balance sheet date were as

TR B R AR 2 R R R

follows:
2010 2009
ZZ %% “EF0E
HK$ RMB US$ HKS$ RMB US$
it N *t # N ETL
Other loans Feft Bk - 12.0% - 12.0% 12.0% -
Obligations under finance leases i gil e 5.2% - - 5.2% 9.4% =
Amount due to ultimate T B 6 e it A )
holding company H 10.0% - 10.0% - - 10.0%
The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair value. i R =2 e T L B G A P fE A A o
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the i ok 2 % THI B % DA £ W R -
following currencies:
Group Company
A% AnH
2010 2009 2010 2009
S -BE SEBIE B BE SERNE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
T# T T# T
Hong Kong dollars BT 221,887 52,255 220,118 =
United States dollars e 58,513 58,413 58,513 58,413
Renminbi N 46,304 58,478 - -
326,704 169,146 278,631 58,413
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND DERIVATIVE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

On 29 August 2008, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with a third party subscriber to issue a two-year convertible
note (“Convertible Notes”) in an aggregate amount of US$15.0
million with an option granted to the subscriber to subscribe for the
second tranche of the Convertible Notes in an aggregate amount of
US$23.0 million. On 9 September 2008, the Company issued the first
tranche of the Convertible Notes with a face value of US$15.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$117.1 million). The Convertible
Notes can be converted into ordinary shares of the Company at any
time after issuance at a conversion price of HK$0.97 per ordinary share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) and bear interest at LIBOR plus
5% per annum. The noteholder has the right to put the Convertible
Notes back to the Company after one and half year of issuance or
the Company will be required to redeem the Convertible Notes upon
maturity, i.e. two years after issuance. In cither case, the notecholder
will be entitled to a redemption amount representing a yield of 22%
per annum. Details of the Convertible Notes can be referred to the
Company’s announcements dated 24 July 2008 and 29 August 2008.
No conversion has been made during the year. On 9 March 2010, the
noteholder has exercised their redemption right and the Company has
redeemed the Convertible Notes with a principal amount of US$15.0
million, at a redemption amount of approximately US$18.8 million

(equivalent to approximately HK$146.3 million).

The first tranche of the Convertible Notes was separated into the
following components: a derivative component representing the option
to subscribe for the second tranche of the Convertible Notes (the
“Second Tranche Option”) and embedded derivatives consisting of a
conversion option, a put option and other options (collectively the
“ED Options”), and a liability component. During the year ended 31
March 2009, the Second Tranche Option was lapsed without exercised.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_F—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

27. ] i 2 45 B Al A W B T

s

W FZNENH 1 JLH > A F 5
— £ B =07 TR N T LR T - 1 R
I N\ 3547 484515,000,0005% 76 Z T 4 1
GE &% JONE Y &5 AP AnEA
A R 48 4.23,000,0003E 56 Z 55 L Wl
el SRR IR - R R )EILA
JUH » A2 W] B 47 1 1815,000,0005% 76
(FH 25 #9117,100,000% 7T ) = 55 —
A 0 B SR o 0 Bk SR 47 1% Bl
I 4 B I % 8 80,978 o6 (T4 H R
T B ) 2 S AR S AR A E 2
JBE o S 45 U B K A BOERAT R SE R R 5
5%t B o ZEIRREA A HER w4 B 5
PREAT R ST — 4 AR v e B R B Il
TR ] > BEAR A T 2R T A B
S J I (BPEEAT AR W A ) B Il vl 4 i 5
o AE MG T - SRR A NS AR
WSO 8% i $ 4 R 229 51 S 2 Wi 2 2.
I 4 351 o VT 3B SR AR RE G W 2 B AR A
AIRZFF)ELH TN HEZFF
JNVEENH ZJUH Z A5 o 48 14 3 S 3
e R _F—RE=ZHNH - 2
FeA N OAT 8 305 0 RE A - T A2 5] R
% [ K 4 %i15,000,0003€ I8 Z 7 2 it
SEE - 8 9] 4 A 4 %5 18,800,00035 76 (A
S #1146,300,0004 78 ) ©

5B — AT 0 S R A A DA R 43 ¢ T AR
THES (FHEE R ZH T He B i 2
AR (T35 HE SRR i | ) B oy ik
KA A TR (45 5 8 45 0 - B0 8
0 I {2 SR (A [P KA A
THEERE]) ) RAGHY KEZZ
FREZA=Z+—H IR B
5% 0 R R A I R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND DERIVATIVE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Continued)
Embedded derivatives

ED Options

The ED Options was also recognized at fair value upon initial
recognition, calculated using a Binomial Model by an external
independent valuer, with any change in fair value recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period when

the change occur.

The ED Options is included in the “Convertible notes” in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Liability component

The liability component was the residual amount of proceeds after
deducting the fair values of the Second Tranche Option and the
ED Options at the date of issue of the Convertible Notes, and was

subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Interest expense was calculated using the effective interest method by
applying the effective interest rate of 58.5% to the adjusted liability
component. Should the aforesaid derivative components not be
separated out and the entire Convertible Notes be considered as the

liability component, the effective interest rate would have been 21.7%.

The liability component is included in the “Convertible notes” in the

consolidated balance sheet.

27. ] i 5245 B Al A W B T

H (#1)
P ik A A7 2 TR

A 1 20T TR FE R

PR ST A TR 88 SR A L7 0 e
IRF 5 2 PR e 28 - A B P TS RE 3R 41
TP 18 S A LB R P TR OB R AT - A
-6 A B B A 300 ) = A A T L
2R

AR AT T IR G AR A E E A
RERNZ [T BB ]

=¥

FURE TR 2 2 T 01 3% 58 0 55 9 I M
PR ST A T EL R R I T B S R %
11T HZ A FERZ B sk R w1 R
T2 G B AS B

I B, 3 HH g R ) A g A6 A e £ A
43 % F B BRI 3R 58.5% T 53 o i b it i
A TS 4 N FE 43 B R B > Bl T e Bt
SEUR R A B R 4 > B B R R
F521.7% o

HEH ARG EEARERZ [T
B Rk -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_F—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND DERIVATIVE  27. v ¥ =5 8 R fii 4k B %
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Continued) H(#)
Liability component (Continued) AR (4)

The Convertible Notes recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

was arrived at as follows:

T i R R 2 T B SR R
T:

Group and Company

7 4 [ e AR 4 )
2010 2009
R ERNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T# T
Liability component RoRRUENMA—H
at 1 April 2009/date of issue BT HE HZ 855 75,146 61,878
Less: issuance costs I BEAT AR - (4,683)
Interest payments LS AT R (5,101) (4,385)
Interest expense A B 32 H 72,747 21,453
Issuance costs amortized 3 8 B AT AR 3,353 1,301
Redemption payment 1 [|] £+ 3k (146,317) -
Exchange difference [EE %6, 5% % 172 (418)
Liability component RO RE RRLE
at 31 March 2010/2009 ZA=Zt—HZAfES - 75,146
ED Options at 1 April 2009/date of issue W_ZRNFENH—H
BATHE H Z Wik
i TR 5,252 27,809
Change in fair value Oy - {H 5 1) (5,252) (22,436)
Exchange difference M 5t 2% 1 = (121)
ED Options at 31 March 2010/2009 BB RES
“ERMNAE=ZA=FHZ
PR A A T R - 5,252
Carrying value of Convertible Notes /G e 2
at 31 March 2010/2009 “EFAEEZA=ZTHZ
AT 66 Je 5 R B i - 80,398
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Continued)

Liability component (Continued)

Details of the Second Tranche Option classified as ‘Derivative financial

instrument are as follows:

P47

] i 5 45 B Al A i B T
H(#)

HEHER S (5)

SHRER TR A TR | 288 st o8
T

Group and Company

7 4 B e AR 4 )
2010 2009
R -RIE RZNLE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T ¥t T#t
Second Tranche Option RERRIUENMHA—H
at 1 April 2009/date BITHHZ
of issue S5 A S R R - 27,399
Option lapsed R R R K = (27,293)
Exchange difference iEE be, 7% = (100)
Derivative component i S 2
— Second Tranche Option —ZEFENWE=H=+—H
at 31 March 2010/2009 Z A THH S
— 58 A R R R - -
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 28. 3 %t B JH £ i

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate
to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to

settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows:

A R AT AT R T B IR R
S B 391 8 I 4 A LR HIK B - TR S P 19
o 5 7 L i LR SR T S [ R
BT 2 [F] — 0B B P Ml = e 1
A B > BLA R U o 2 AR I
B A 5 208 20 A5 0 SR A AR LA K o
AR AT

Group
A 4 )
2010 2009
“EF-RE  “ERFLEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T T# T
Deferred tax assets A JE I 181 169
Deferred tax liabilities A F1E A5% TE £ £ (181) (169)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_F—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 28 EHEFLIE £ 15 (4)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized in the FEN B REABRNERZ ELH
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year are as FHEE, (A R RILEEmT :
follows:

Revaluation

of investment

properties/
accelerated
depreciation
allowances Tax losses Total
®"E
wmEEN
3 v B 155 i I Jies 18 AR
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tl Tl
At 1 April 2008 W /)NFENH—H (97,262) 9,671 (87,591)
Credited to consolidated statement of — FF A%E A 2 T W 25 &
comprehensive income (Note 11) (BfFsE11) 22,463 6,625 29,088
Disposal of subsidiaries H 5 B A 76,456 (16,328) 60,128
Exchange difference e B 2% 7 (1,826) 201 (1,625)
At 31 March 2009 REFFLE
=Z=H=+—H (169) 169 -
(Charged)/Credited to consolidated (fBEH), SEAGA
statement of comprehensive 4 TH WL AR R
income (Note 11) (HFsELL) (12) 12 —
At 31 March 2010 BT —F4
=EF == (181) 181 .
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

Ak 3 U 5 e ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

28. 3 %€ Bi JH AU A (4]

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are as follows: ARMERZBLEFIAEEW T ¢
2010 2009
“E-EE CEBIE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Unutilized tax losses R =z Bl TE & 1B 53,829 40,843
Accelerated depreciation allowance o 228 8 % A4 431 458
54,260 41,301

At 31 March 2010, the deferred tax assets on the Group’s
and the Company’s unutilized tax losses of approximartely
HK$284,155,000 and HK$120,654,000 (2009: HK$220,584,000
and HK$103,223,000) respectively, which can be carried forward
against future taxable income, have not been recognized due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the Group’s tax
losses, HK$202,464,000 (2009: HK$167,552,000) has no expiry date
and HK$81,691,000 (2009: HK$53,032,000) expire within five years
under the current tax legislation of the respective jurisdictions. The
Company’s unutilized tax losses have no expiry date under the current

tax legislation.

N —BE=ZH=+—H -&R&EH
B A 2\ ) B W) A DL AR B H 1% RE
kB A 2 R B B I ks 18 4 B A
7284,155,000% JC 12 120,654,000 %
gt ( = ZZ U4 £ 220,584,000% 76 &
103,223,000% 76 ) > 1H K H 1% ¥ A1l 24 I
ASRY TE > e 1 AR T R R G T o
FR 98 45 ) 3 [ 2 BAT B o) » FE AR
45 8 B TE 5 48 P > 202,464,000 76 (—
FE A 167,552,0009 76 ) i 4 JE i
H > 81,691,000% 6 (ZFZF L4
53,032,000% 76 ) HI A 487 9 20 3] - s 4%
BUATBLB AR - AR 28 5] 2 AR B ) B 3E s
80 S i i H O o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

29.SHARE CAPITAL 29. R A
2010 2009
—E-FE  ZRFhF
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Authorized: Vg
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 4,000,000,000/8% ¥ /& Jit »
HK$0.01 each B B E0.019 T 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: T RMR:
1,529,600,200 ordinary shares of 1,529,600,2008 5 ¥ Bt >
HK$0.01 each BB HEIE0.01 ¥ 7T 15,296 15,296

Share option scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2008, 42,000,000 share options was

granted under the Scheme with an exercise price of HK$0.77 per share.

The related weighted average closing price immediately before the date

on which the share options were granted was HK$0.77 per share.

The share options to subscribe for shares are exercisable as to:

(i)

For Directors or employees who have been employed for not less

than two years immediately before date of grant:

(@)
(b)

(c)

(d)

up to 20% immediately after date of grant;

up to 46.7% immediately after 12 months from date of
grant;

up to 73.3% immediately after 24 months from date of
grant; and

up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of

grant.

For Directors or employees who have been employed for less than

two years immediately before date of grant:

(@)

(b)

up to 33.3% immediately after 12 months from date of
grant;

up to 66.7% immediately after 24 months from date of
grant; and

up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of

grant.

Vi it BE 5t
WREZRZ)E=ZH=+—HILEE
A > 42,000,000 i 1B HE HiR 4% wt ) 5 42
> 47 {18 2% 13 JB0. 7795 JG o 2% I
RE 2 1 E 300 T 2 A R oo R - 349 Wi vl e
F 45 0,778 T ©

S JBEHEE VT 77 S B B ] 4 o DA R ML

(i)

(ii)

B BB T O 2 08 A A R
MEZEFHREE N :

@)
(b)

(c)

(d)

KRR N IR 2 #20%
K pERZ B 248 &
2 HE46.7%

K pERZ B R S 2408 A &
B2 #E73.3% 5 R

K pEZ B RS 3efE A %
2% #100% ©

B BE B 32 R D R AR
ZEREREEE

(@)

(b)

()

ZBER W RS 2ME A &
2 #£33.3%

K PER H H R 24 H %
B2 #66.7% 5 &

K PER H H 36 H %
B 2% #100% ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

29.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The fair value of share options granted during the year ended 31
March 2008 estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model is
HK$0.2658 to HK$0.2941 per share, which was based on valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer, Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited. The calculation takes into account a share price of
HKS$0.77 per share, exercise price of HK$0.77 per share, a risk-free
interest rate of 4.02% to 4.15%, a volatility of 42.34% to 50.62%

with expected life for 2.5 to 4.0 years and no expected dividend.

None of the share options granted under the Scheme were exercised
during the year ended 31 March 2010 and 2009. The related weighted
average share price at the time of exercise during the year ended 31
March 2008 was HK$0.80 per ordinary share. These shares rank pari

passu with the existing shares of the Company.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

29. AR (4)

Jil P R it B ()

BREZFZRN\FE=ZH=T—HILEE
¥ th 2 S BRERE A OF 1H AR B8 e B L B
S A B B b R RN AR A W) AT Z A
{8 > R A0 ) 50 — &7 80 390 A A B A 4T
i 5t > A 5 BR0.2658% 9T £0.2941%
JC o Bb 5 S BR A B AR A B0, 779 T ~ 4T
A5 )80 0. 77 ¥ 00 ~ SR B A 2840200 %
4.15% ~ B 1R 42.34%%50.62% J% T 5T 4%
W2 524,04 - WIEFHFI LR ©

BRE_R-FER_FFLF=ZA
= H kAR B - 3 AT 0 AR B Gt
BB 2 _FRN\E=A
= HOR AR S AT A B e
- ¥ JB AR s i JB 3 9 J 0,809 T © i
JBe Aoy BLAS 2 R BUAT B 5 ) 2 M A o

W AR AT 8 1 PR S I e A0 <5 A B T

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: WA EZEBHMT
2010 2009
“EFE “EFME
Average Average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
in HK$ of share in HK$ of share
per share options per share options
Y ] (1SS
A B 6 S e A7 B4 S I A
(#72) WH (#75) #H
At 1 April HA—H 0.77 29,800,000 0.77 34,400,000
Forfeited B 0.77 (8,400,000 0.77  (4,600,000)
At 31 March REA=+—H 0.77 21,400,000 0.77 29,800,000

Out of the 21,400,000 outstanding options (2009: 29,800,000),
15,093,000 (2009: 12,173,000) were exercisable. Share options
outstanding at the end of the year will expire on 22 August 2012 with

an exercise price of HK$0.77 per share.

21,400,000 ( = F % Ju 4 :
29,800,000 ) 1 A AT 5 Z 1 it HE o
15,093,0004 ( = ZFZF JL4F : 12,173,000
B ) F AT AT A o A 4% 1 R AT B 2 i Bt
A T — A4 )\H 2 H E W 4T
55 8 7 15 )8 0. 7795 T
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ = F —FF=H=—1—H ILF /&

30. RESERVES 30. fifi i
(a) The Group (a) AEEH
Available- Employee
for-sale share-based
Share financial compensation Exchange Retained
premium assets reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Wi VARt 5% b
i 45 2R
Bt i 0 7 B 18 o E 55 5t f TR B A ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 1 April 2008 RZZZNENA—H 152,049 404 3,805 51,634 133,388 341,280
Release of exchange reserve AL th 5 A 0
on disposal of subsidiaries T 5 I ok - - - (50,283) - (50,283)
Translation exchange difference ST A - - - 15,857 = 15,857
Employee share option benefits 1 5 e A A - - 3,037 - - 3,037
Transfer to retained earnings TR R i ¢
upon lapse of share options Bl - - (146) - 146 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries R M 20 - - - - - -
Contribution from minority shareholders SRR I & - - - - - -
Net loss for the year N ER T - - - - (150,407) (150,407)
Disposal of subsidiaries AR - - - - - -
At 31 March 2009 REZFNEZAZ—H 152,049 404 6,696 17,208 (16,873) 159,484
Translation exchange difference M A - - - 1,228 - 1,228
Employee share option benefits 1 B IR A ) - - 382 - = 382
Transfer to retained earnings TR K o
upon lapse of share options EXTY R - - (1,297) - 1,297 -
Net loss for the year N BT - - - - (154,281) (154,281)
Issuance of preferred shares I 24 B¢ 7
by a subsidiary (Note 25) B R (Writs) - - - - - -
At 31 March 2010 REZ—FE
ZHE4—H 152,049 404 5,781 18,436 (169,857) 6813

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED

128 o 4o i B 44 1




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

30. RESERVES (Continued) 30. fii i (#)
(b) The Company (b) A4 H
Employee Available-
share-based for-sale
Share  compensation financial Retained
premium reserve  assets reserve earnings Total
VAR 3 A i
Z MR iR
B i T il 18 £k i B 7 fik ik B i A ki
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T# T#x T#T T#T T#
At 1 April 2008 RERF N\
MA—H 152,049 3,805 404 (2,855) 153,403

Employee share option & B Jifi it B

benefits A - 3,037 - - 3,037
Transfer to retained N Y

earnings upon lapse W ERE

of share options Ya A1) — (146) - 146 =
Net profit for the year 4% Wit I -4 - - - 03,285 63,285

At 31 March 2009 h_EENE
=H=+—H 152,049 6,696 404 60,576 219,725

Employee share option & B Jifi it HE

benefits Al - 382 - - 382
Transfer to retained P J B A 2 A5 IR

earnings upon lapse R

of share options Yo = (1,297) = 1,297 -
Net loss for the year AR I s TR A = = = (102,297) (102,297)

At 31 March 2010 REF—FA
=H=+H 152,049 5,781 404 (40,424) 117,810

Annual Report 4 #
2009/2010 =




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 W 5 e ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

31. COMMITMENTS 31. k¥

(a) Operating lease commitments — where the Group is
the lessee

At 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group had commitments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises,

which fall due as follows:

(a)

A8 A R I — AR L 2y
ARHLA

ROF - RERCREIEZA
St o AR AR DR T 8
AL B DA AR 2 L
UEEZIINE

2010 2009

—B-BE EEAE

HKS$’000 HK$000

T#7t T#T

Not later than 1 year A 8 58— A 10,741 11,723

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years — 4P, BB A @ AR 837 11,074

11,578 22,797

(b) Capital commitments (b) BEA K

As at 31 March 2010, the Group has commitment in relation to N —FE=HA=1+—H A%
acquisition of hotels to China Post Group, and the outstanding VB A7 B i v ] T % [ MBS i

commitment amounted to RMB43.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$49.1 million) (2009: HK$234.6 million).
As disclosed in Note 33(b), the Group has entered into several
termination agreements of four hotel properties on 25 June
2010. Following these terminations, the Group’s commitment in
relation to acquisition of hotels would be reduced to RMB12.1

million (equivalent to approximately HK$13.7 million).

Other than those mentioned above, the Group has commitments
in respect of refurbishment costs contracted but not recognized
of HK$5,560,000 and HK$9,952,000 as at 31 March 2010 and
2009 respectively.

B A ¥ > Bis MEA i s N R
43,100,0007C (M4 949,100,000
Wwot) (ZFFILA 234,600,000
WIT) o K FE33(b) B % 58 - A4
M —F—FEANH I HRN
TECT 5 4 36 8T S 28 TR I o ik o Y
H kA% > A B A I WO S T < R
A 2N R¥#12,100,00076 (H
218 %913,700,000% 75 ) ©

B BB A - h R R R
ZFNE=ZH=1—H - REEHH
BT AR Z T 5T 4918 AR e 52 R 35
43 Wl %55,560,000% JG 59,952,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=="1—HILFSE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

the year:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purchases of services

The Group has contracted with various related parties, which are
corporations controlled by a Director, to provide management
and administrative services to the Group. The service was
terminated with effective from 1 May 2009. The management
and administrative fee paid and payable for the year is

HK$20,000 (year ended 31 March 2009: HK$249,000)

Rental charges

The Group has entered into a tenancy agreement with the
landlord, Smart Forward Services Limited, a corporation owned
by a Director, to lease a residential unit at a monthly rent of
HKS$55,000 effective from 15 May 2006 for a period of 2 years.
The lease has been renewed on 13 May 2008 for further two years
commencing on 15 May 2008 at a monthly rent of HK$66,000.
A rental deposit of HK$132,000 has been placed with the
landlord. The rental expense paid and payable for the year is
HK$792,000 (year ended 31 March 2009: HK$775,000). The

lease expired on 14 May 2010 and was not renewed.

Interest expenses

During the year, the Group has interest expenses paid and
payable to VXLCPL amounting to HK$10,523,000 for the
loan as disclosed in Note 26 (year ended 31 March 2009:
HK$7,831,000).

32. BB R 5
45 g S OB 7 o 4T 2 %8 5 BB

(a)

(b)

(o)

Ji B e 5

AREECHS AR (H—%%
FPH 2 ARG L AR AR
H0 2 A3 A8 B T AT A BILUIRFS o A A
RBECH -FFNLFELH —HR
Bk o AR - DA K HEA 24 HL
U B %520,0008 70 (B 2=
FENE=ZHA=ZT—HILFEE:
249,000% 70 ) °

A 4 P 52

A 4 B B % £ Smarc Forward
Services Limited (H— % HEHHEA
ZAHE)F L —HALE k- A
55,000 7C A 5 — {42 58 BLAL >
MM _EFAEHA THA R
BRI AR - B DR R F )\ 4
HA+T=EHBAWE > H FF)N
AT T H B4R > A AL 2566,000
W0 o A T 1k 3 3 A A 9
4:132,000¥ 7 © 4= N > A R EA)
Z A 4 B X %5792,0009 0 (#k 2
CERBPEZA=Z—HIRESE
775,000%50) - HECHR _F—F
FAHTUHB - BARA HW -

1 B BH X

AF > AR 45 [ B 26 B B R
K O K& HE A T VXLCPLZ Al
BB % %510,523,000% 0 (B £ —
RENEZHA=Z+—HILEE:
7,831,000% I8 ) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 ME_FE—FFE=H="1—HILFSZF

32.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. [ Wi Uy 52 5 (&)
(Continued)
(d) Key management compensation (d) &= 2% B E M &
2010 2009
R -RE EFLE
HKS$’000 HK$000
T T#
Directors’ fee A A 341 227
Salaries and other short-term Wt 4 B At 301 1 B
employee benefits & A 10,614 41,639
Employee share option benefits 18 B Ji Jit B 4 A1) 361 1,096
Pension costs — Mandatory Provident Fund TR 4 AR — ) A 26 36
11,342 42,998
33.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 33.4iHHIRFIH
(a) On 7 June 2010, U Inns & Hotel (Si Chuan) Limited, an @ R_FE—FHFEAHLH - KM
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered FARWE (1)) AR A (A&
into an agreement with a third party to dispose of the hotel A ZHEEERE AR )’ —
property located in Daying, Sichuan province for a consideration 28 = J5 51 on 1 vk o B AL U
of RMB22.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$25.0 N8 K 3% B8 2 3 )5 3 - ARE %
million). The profit on disposal is estimated to be approximately ANE#H22,000,00078 (FH 2R %
HK$5.5 million. 25,000,000% 5T ) o Hi B A A4 514

#5,500,000% IC ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 WE_FE—FFE=H=—1—HILFSE

33. 4 HZHIH (#)

33.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

(b) On 25 June 2010, the Group has entered into several termination
agreements with the respective vendors of four hotel properties
located in Linzhi, Tibet Autonomous Region, and Longnan,
Dunhuang, and Dingxi in Gansu province. The consideration
for these four hotels amounted to RMB74.3 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$84.5 million). The deposits paid by the
Group for these four hotels amounted to HK$55.0 million, of
which HK$5.4 million provision for impairment has been made
as at 31 March 2010. The remaining deposits will be returned to
the Group by end of August 2010. Upto the date of this report,
RMB4.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$5.6 million)

has been returned.

34.APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements on pages 39 to 133 were

approved by the Board on 21 July 2010.

(b)

PR BENAZHHE > A4
B 43 ) B A7 A 1 5 YA [ AR 2
5 DA B H i A W R i~ B T
VG T 2 DY I i ) 36 2 E 7 T o
25 TE A% 1k foh i o 5% 7 THD ¥ 2 AR
N B WE74,300,00070 (HH 45 0% 4
84,500,000% 78 ) ° AR M % Y
M1 0 )& 32 A 4% 4255,000,0009 JC »
H #15,400,000 c it T —F
EEHE1— H RS WA
WERBBN 2 —RE N\ R
B R R T ARLEHE - BREARRSEH
> N R #4,900,0007C (FH 27 40
5,600,000% 70 ) T AR IR o

34. #it 1 5% B A B H R

ERFOR-F-FELAZSHHH#t
RN EHFOHERIBEZ G Y
B -
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Glossary
) 52

“112 Apartments”

[&—# ]

“AGM(s)”
[ 3 ) 47 k1

“Articles of Association”

[ CHLAR TR AR

»

“Associate(s)

B3 PN=

“Board”
[EHe

“CG Code”
[ (3R |

“Changshou Properties”
[RFHE]

“Company” or “VXL Capital”
(AW | gl [ b 4 i |

“Companies Ordinance”
[ CAAHRBD |

G »
Directors

[ % |

“Group”
A4

“HK$”
[#7e ]

The property situated at 112 Chun Yeung Street, North Point, Hong Kong
B A L fa BT 11298 Z W 3

Annual General Meetings of the Company
NN S KN

The Articles of Association of the Company

A ) B CAH A AR A I

Has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules unless otherwise specified in the

financial statements

Hotg LB Bl T 306 2 > B 5 3R A 3 A 0 it i 2 U Bk b

The board of Directors
WHE

Code of Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

AR Fh 8% - DU BT A (s S84 ¥ AL )

The North Block and South Block of the property development known as Changshou

Commercial Plaza situated in the Putuo District in Shanghai, the PRC.

R v B R I 4 R R 5 T S Y I PR % e AR K Bt e E H

VXL Capital Limited
LR S AT PR 2

The Companies Ordinance, Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended from time

to time.

FWHEHIE =+ 250 (ARG (AR REET)

Directors of the Company

VNNCIER

The Company and its subsidiaries

Aoy ] B e W Jag 4 )

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
WL > 759 1 ¥ 8 ]

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
R AT PR




“HKICPA”
[ st hill 2 7

“Hong Kong”
[ 75 %5

“Listing Rules”

[ Chm g |

“Model Code”

[ BRI |

“RQN Committee”
[RQNZ H & |

“PRC”
[

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
[\ R

“SEO”

[ G2 R B pepil) |

“Shares”

[ JBed

“Scheme”

[t

“Shareholder(s)”
[ B3R ]

“Stock Exchange”
It 22 o J

Glossary (Continued)
i 52 (4H)

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

ER A A

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
GEE NP o oy i

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from

time to time

F I 52 T T B KR B 5 22 5 B A BR A Rl o i B (AR BT )

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix

10 to the Listing Rules
ChET AR B g% 0 bkl 3847 N\ o5 35 HE AT 38 27 38 5 1 B e s L)

Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee

B KHELRAZHT

The Peoples’ Republic of China
Lk Y NEE |

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
N R > h B B

The Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended

from time to time

HWHEHIE LA L+ T GER R R (RARHERT)

Ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
A 2 ] JBe AR e 4 B VT L0019 7T 4 0 Mk

The share option scheme adopted by the Company at AGM held on 3 June 2005
AAFRZRBIAEANH = H BT Z R R AR & BR A i Ji B4 5t

Holder(s) of Share(s)
i ZLESZ DN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EWE G5 A R A
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Glossary (Continued)
a5t (#)

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”
[

“VXLCPL”

['VXLCPL J

“Warrants”

[ Je

Has the meaning ascribed to in Schedule I to the SFO
Bl G5 B Gy Bif 3= — Bl 3> 199 7 28

VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands and a controlling Shareholder of the Company
L7 3 JB i 4 R 44 5 VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited I 2 &) 5 A% 23 5] iy
2 JBe JBe 3R

Listed warrants of the Company (Stock Code : 831)
AN F Z bR B R R (AR - 831)
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The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the

last five financial periods.

Financial Summary
S 25 R

WFe

A% 55 T 7 d5 20 A R D 2 A S A A

1/1/2005 to 1/1/2006 to 1/4/2007 to 1/4/2008 to  1/4/2009 to

31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/3/2008 31/3/2009 31/3/2010

1/1/2005% 1/1/2006% 1/4/2007 % 1/4/2008%  1/4/2009%

31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/3/2008 31/3/2009 31/3/2010

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000

Tt T SR T T 0

Turnover BEH 11,819 33,939 23,976 (10,105) 2,329
Profit/(loss) before B i g A

taxation (EH) 9,860 52,337 34,449 (180,163) (154,278)

Taxation (charge)/credit BIE () /s (5,793) 11,207 (26,885) 29,087 (3)

Profit/(loss) for the year EREF L (ER) 4,067 63,544 7,564 (151,076) (154,281)

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group as

at 31 December 2005, and 31 March 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010.

e S e e LY =
FELE CEFNE CFTAERCF
— RS = H 2 R R R

W e
31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/3/2008 31/3/2009 31/3/2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
T T SR R T 0
Total assets W 300,505 994,971 1,480,957 521,741 589,758
Total liabilicies A EAH (106,993) (695,570) (1,124,381) (346,961) (444,285)
Total equity THE 25 4 193,512 299,401 356,576 174,780 145,473
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Shareholders’ Information

JBe S R

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2010 AGM will be held on Thursday, 16 September 2010 at 2:30 p.m.
at Suite 2707-8, One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong
Kong. Details of the 2010 AGM are set out in the Notice of 2010 AGM
sent to the Shareholders together with a proxy form along with this Annual

Report.

SHARE-RELATED SERVICES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company’s Share Registrars:—

Name: Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Address: Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
Telephone: +852 2862 8628
Facsimile: +852 2529 6087
INVESTOR INFORMATION

Corporate press releases, financial reports and other investor information of
the Company are available online at the Company’s website, htep://www.

vxlcapital.com.

FINANCIAL CALENDER 2010
Announcement of 2009-10 final results 21 July 2010
2010 AGM 16 September 2010

Announcement of 2010-11 interim results November 2010

COMPANY’S MARKET CAPITALIZATION

HK$512.4 million as at year end, based on closing price of HK$0.335 per
Share on 31 March 2010.

i LN

SR RERRERNETHETR R RS
LA+ B (RBIM) T4 k=0 fBUs
WP BB G \RZ RS — M =t
CENERT - R -RERRAFERETHF
T ORR —F - FE R ERTEY - %
3B PR T AT LM R AR i — o B
JBe 3R o

JB% 4y A T ik 25

A7 B By 8 5 % 8 T o L > s O A A 2 Y
JBe Ay 388 JF R g ¢ —

R WP RBEELARAF
Motk 75 HE A 5 R R R 18358 & A

+E—bE——F AR
TEWH : +852 2862 8628

¥ : +852 2529 6087
’REEER

25 w1 B ~ B R e At 4 R
AL A A A W] A8 HE (heep:/ fwww.vxlcapital.com) B

%o

R FREME A
N2 T S
e E EA=t—H
SR-BERIMERE  SEB-BEAA AN
MiZR-RE-F%  “R-RETA
PURE

A 2w 1

WMo -BRE=ZHA=+—-HERKKHHE
0.335W Rl 3> NEELL K H Z WA
512,400,000%% JC ©
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (Chairman)
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO

(Group President and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.p
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.
Mr. David YU Hon To

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO (Chairman)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. David YU Hon To (Chairman)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, j.p
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.

REMUNERATION, QUALITY AND

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.p. (Chairman)
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.p.

Mr. David YU Hon To

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WONG Wing Cheong

Corporate Information
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Corporate Information (Continued)

nEERE(B)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Suite 2707-8, One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

33rd Floor, Cheung Kong Center
2 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Ordinary Shares (Stock Code: 727)

WEBSITES

VXL Capital Limited

htep://www.vxlcapital.com

U-Inn Hotels

http://www.uinns.cn
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\D{L CAPITAL LIMITED
FHERMBRL2A

Suite 2707- 8, One Exchange Square,
8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong
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www.vxlcapital.com
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